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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Honorable County Commission 
Uintah County 
Vernal, Utah 84078 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Uintah 
County, Utah (the County) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of Uintah Basin Tri-County Mental Health & Substance Abuse Authority, Uintah Recreation Special Service District, 
Uintah Transportation Special Service District, Uintah Animal Control and Shelter Special Service District, Uintah Health Care 
Special Service District, Uintah Impact Mitigation Special Service District, and Uintah Fire Suppression Special Service District. 
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it relates 
to the amounts included for those component units, is based solely on the report of such other auditors. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. In order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Summary of Opinions 

Opinion Unit   Type of Opinion 
Governmental activities   Qualified 
Business-type activities   Unmodified 
Governmental funds   Unmodified 
Enterprise funds   Unmodified 
Aggregately presented component units   Unmodified 
Aggregate remaining fund information   Unmodified 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Governmental Activities 

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the valuation of capital assets in the government-wide 
financial statements of the County. Beginning balances of the capital assets did not tie to amounts reported in previously issued 
statements, and there was a lack of evidence as to which balances were accurately reported. Therefore, we could not obtain an 
appropriate starting balance for reported asset values in the financial records. Consequently, we were unable to determine 
whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.  
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Qualified Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, except for the possible effects of the matters described in 
the Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Governmental Activities paragraph as noted above, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Governmental activities of Uintah County as 
of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial changes in financial position for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Unmodified Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Uintah County, Utah, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter - Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2020, the County was not eligible to use the modified approach for 
reporting infrastructure due to noncompliance with the compliance requirements required under the modified approach for 
infrastructure reporting.  This change in accounting principle was applied during 2020 as instructed in guidance.  Our opinion is 
not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison information, and other required supplementary information related to pensions, as listed in the 
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Uintah 
County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the statement of cash 
receipts and disbursement – tax collection agency, the statement on current taxes levied, collected, and treasurers’ relief are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
and is also not a part of the basic financial statements.   

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the statement of cash receipts and disbursement – tax 
collection agency, the statement on current taxes levied, collected, and treasurers’ relief –and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements, the statement of cash receipts and disbursement – tax collection agency, the statement on current taxes 
levied, collected, and treasurers’ relief – and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 1, 2021 on our consideration 
of Uintah County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Uintah County’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Larson & Company, PC 
Spanish Fork, Utah 
October 1, 2021
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This discussion of Uintah County’s financial performance provides an overview of the County’s financial 
activities for the year ending December 31, 2020. This report is in conjunction with the County’s financial 
statements. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.   

The purpose of the County is to provide general services to its residents, which includes general 
government, public safety, public health, highways and public improvements, parks and recreation, and 
economic development. Additional services provided to residents in the unincorporated areas include road 
maintenance and fire control. 

Financial Highlights 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Uintah County exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources as of December 31, 2020 by $432,143 (net position).  Of this 
amount, $38,964 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the governments’ ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 The primary government’s total net position increased due to operations by $296. The revenues 
and expenditures were less than the adopted budgeted amounts.  

 At the close of the current year, the Uintah County governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $75,509, a decrease of $4,860 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 
16.6 percent of this total amount, $12,506 is available for spending at the government’s discretion 
(unrestricted fund balance).  

 A blended component unit of the county (the Municipal Building Authority) acquired no 
additional new debt this year.  The MBA also paid off the 2008B and 2011C bond both with an 
interest rate of 2.5%.  The Municipal Building Authority has decreased its total debt by $9,563.  
Leaving a Total MBA Debt at Year-end of $8,907. 

 At the end of the current year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $12,506, or 
59.8 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers.  

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Uintah County’s basic financial 
statements. Uintah County’s basic financial statements comprise three components:   1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.  

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
Uintah County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  

The statement of net position presents information on all of Uintah County’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Uintah County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Uintah County that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges. The governmental activities of Uintah County include general government, public safety, public 
health, highways and public improvements, parks and recreation, and economic development. The 
business-type activities of Uintah County are Uintah Care Center, Western Park, Tele-Communication, 
and Landfill. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only Uintah County itself (known as the primary 
government), but also seven legally separate special service district; for highways and bridges, 
Recreation, Mental Health, Health Care, Animal Control and Shelter, Impact Mitigation District, and Fire 
Suppression for which Uintah County is financially accountable. Financial information for these 
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary 
government itself.  The business type activities for all practical purposes function as departments of 
Uintah County, and therefore have been included as an integral part of the primary government.  

Refer to the table of contents for the location of the government-wide financial statement. 

Fund financial statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Uintah County, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All 
of the funds of Uintah County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, enterprise funds, 
and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balance of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information 
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term  impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities.   

Uintah County maintains 19 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Tri-County Health Fund, B-Road Fund, Municipal 
Services Fund, Debt Service and Capital Projects Fund all of which are considered to be major funds. 
Data from the other 13 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report.  
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Uintah County adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its governmental funds.  Budgetary 
comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund and major special revenue funds to 
demonstrate compliance with those budgets. 

Refer to the table of contents for the location of the basic governmental fund financial statements.  

Proprietary funds 

Uintah County maintains 2 types of proprietary funds comprised of an internal service fund and enterprise 
funds, which are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Uintah County uses an enterprise fund to account for its Care 
Center, Western Park, Tele-Communications and Landfill operations.  

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Care 
Center, Western Park, Tele-Communication, and Landfill.  

Refer to the table of contents for the location of the basic proprietary fund financial statements. 

Fiduciary funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support Uintah County’s own programs. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  

Refer to the table of contents for the location of the basic fiduciary fund financial statements.  

Component Units 

The County reports seven component units. The component units have been separately audited, reviewed 
or compiled. Separately issued financial statements can be viewed or copied at their administrative offices 
in Vernal, Utah.  

Notes to the financial statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are part of the basic financial statements.  

Other information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning Uintah County, which consists of pension disclosures, 
infrastructure assets and budget to actual comparisons. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with component units, non-major 
governmental funds and the enterprise fund are presented immediately following the required 
supplementary information.  

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of Uintah County, assets exceeded liabilities by $432,143 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year.  
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By far the largest portion of Uintah County’s net position (77 percent) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g. land, building, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. Uintah County uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Uintah County’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed 
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities.  

A portion of Uintah County’s net position (14 percent) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $38,964, may 
be used to meet the government’s on-going obligations to citizens and creditors.  

At the end of the year, Uintah County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net 
position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type 
activities. The same situation held true for the prior year.  

 
Table 1 

Net Position 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets 84,169,659$    87,941,074$    24,098,551$    24,136,603$    108,268,210$  112,077,677$  

Capital assets 362,163,967    370,196,196    9,146,850        9,177,174        371,310,817    379,373,370    

Deferred outflows 7,064,835        10,172,705      199,756           355,046           

   Total assets 453,398,461    468,309,975    33,445,157      33,668,823      479,579,027    491,451,047    

Current and other liabilities 5,766,348        14,639,613      271,704           268,855           6,038,052        14,908,468      

Long-term liabilities 44,811,526      51,009,801      430,878           744,409           45,242,404      51,754,210      

Deferred inflows 3,080,701        763,080           140,149           40,930             

   Total liabilities 53,658,575      66,412,494      842,731           1,054,194        51,280,456      66,662,678      

Net position:

Net investment in capital asset 324,542,510    324,138,847    9,146,850        9,177,174        333,689,360    333,316,021    

Restricted 38,792,372      43,713,172      20,696,342      20,889,617      59,488,714      64,602,789      

Unrestricted 36,405,004      34,045,462      2,559,478        2,547,838        38,964,482      36,593,300      

   Total net position 399,739,886    401,897,481    32,402,670      32,614,629      432,142,556    434,512,110    

Total liabilities and net position 453,398,461    468,309,975    33,245,401      33,668,823      483,423,012    501,174,788    

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
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Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities decreased Uintah County’s net position by $2,370.  Key elements of this decrease 
are as follows: 

Table 2 
Change in Net Position 

 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues:

Program revenues:

   Charges for services 6,890,476$      10,546,505$    1,125,158$      1,234,469$      8,015,634$      11,780,974$    

   Operating grants and contributions 10,474,403      13,118,795      -                      -                      10,474,403      13,118,795      

   Capital grants and contributions 7,040,089        675,330           -                      -                      7,040,089        675,330           

General revenues:

   Property taxes 19,395,852      15,226,479      -                      -                      19,395,852      15,226,479      

   Sales taxes 3,354,270        6,483,731        718,420           792,550           4,072,690        7,276,281        

   Grants & contr.-not restricted 3,873,628        871,508           20,025             9,025               3,893,653        880,533           

   Gain (loss) on sale of assets 115,235           (169,028)         -                      -                      115,235           (169,028)         

   Miscellaneous 1,023,256        2,510,326        439,637           748,999           1,462,893        3,259,325        

      Total revenues 52,167,209      49,263,646      2,303,240        2,785,043        54,470,449      52,048,689      

Expenses:

General government 14,818,086      10,604,339      -                      -                      14,818,086      10,604,339      

Public safety 13,703,155      14,191,483      -                      -                      13,703,155      14,191,483      

Public health 4,477,826        4,969,017        -                      -                      4,477,826        4,969,017        

Highways and public improvements 9,592,537        5,788,392        -                      -                      9,592,537        5,788,392        

Parks, recreation, and public property 2,515,480        6,746,158        -                      -                      2,515,480        6,746,158        

Conservation and economic developme 7,876,898        2,467,771        -                      -                      7,876,898        2,467,771        

Interest on long-term debt 1,189,997        1,624,666        -                      -                      1,189,997        1,624,666        

Care Center -                      -                      600,000           200,000           600,000           200,000           

Western Park -                      -                      1,548,696        1,943,019        1,548,696        1,943,019        

Landfill -                      -                      750,083           909,004           750,083           909,004           

Telecommunications -                      -                      183,624           163,012           183,624           163,012           

      Total expenses 54,173,979      46,391,826      3,082,403        3,215,035        54,173,979      49,606,861      

Increase in net assets before transfers (2,006,770)      2,871,820        (779,163)         (429,992)         296,470           2,441,828        

T ransfers (567,204)         (650,000)         567,204           650,000           -                      -                      

      Change in net position (2,573,974)      2,221,820        (211,959)         220,008           296,470           2,441,828        

Net position - beginning 401,897,481    400,450,661    32,614,629      32,479,621      434,512,110    432,930,282    

   Prior period adjustment 416,379           (775,000)         -                      (85,000)           416,379           (860,000)         

Net position - ending 399,739,886$  401,897,481$  32,402,670$    32,614,629$    432,142,556$  434,512,110$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 
For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for 
services, a few of the more significant changes are listed below: 
 
• Capital grants and contributions increased by $6,365 
• Operating grants and contributions decreased by $2,644 
• Property taxes increased by $4,169 
• Sales tax decreased by $3,129 
• Non restricted grants and contributions increased by $3,002 
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Business-type activities 
 
Business-type activities decreased Uintah County’s net assets by $212.  Key elements of this increase are 
shown in Table 2 Change in Net Position.  
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, Uintah County used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds 
 
The focus of Uintah County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Uintah County’s 
financing requirements. In particular unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.  
 
At the end of the year, Uintah County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$80,369, an increase of $4,860 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 40 percent of this 
amount ($30,494) constitutes unassigned and assigned fund balances, which is available for spending at 
the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is restricted and committed to indicate that it 
is not available for new spending. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Uintah County. At the 
end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $12,506.  As a measure of the 
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund 
balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 59.8 percent of total General Fund 
expenditures and transfers.   
 
Enterprise funds 
 
Uintah County’s enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail.  
 
Total unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $2,560. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget expenditures of $4,353 can be 
briefly summarized as follows: 
 

• $742 increase in general government 
• $374 decrease in public safety 
• $215 increase in public health 
• $440 decrease in highways and public improvements 
• $292 decrease in parks, recreation and public property 
• $5,453 increase in conservation and economic development 
• $1,000 decrease in transfers 
• $50 increase in capital outlay 
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The increase of $4,353 was funded by general property taxes, sales tax, grants and use of unrestricted 
fund balance.  During the year, however, actual revenues were less than budgeted revenues by $10,094 
and actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $9,569.  The overall operating decrease 
in the general fund, fund balance was $525.   
 
Capital Assets 
 
Uintah County’s investment in capital assets for its government-wide activities as of December 31, 2020, 
amounts to $371,311 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, and infrastructure, highways, bridges and 
construction in progress (CIP). The total decrease in Uintah County’s investment in government-wide 
capital assets for the current year was $8,063. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current year included the following:  
 

 Equipment purchases of $4,586. and dispositions of $1,652. 
 Land donation of $470 

 
Also, the county has elected to use the modified approach to account for its infrastructure assets, such as 
roads. That information can be found in the required supplemental information following the notes to the 
financial statements.  There have been no changes in the system the County utilizes to assess the 
condition of infrastructure assets as compared with prior years.  The assessed condition of assets has not 
changed as compared to last year.  There have been no significant differences from the estimated annual 
amount to maintain and preserve infrastructure assets compared with the actual amount spent during the 
current period. 
 
The following table summarizes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of December 31, 2020: 

Table 3 
Capital Asset at Year-end 

(Net of Depreciation) 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land 15,148,886$       14,678,886$       6,315,656$         6,315,656$         21,464,542$       20,994,542$       
Water rights 282,780             280,995             -                    -                    282,780             280,995             
Rights of way 3,050,400           3,050,400           -                    -                    3,050,400           3,050,400           
Artifacts and collections -                    -                    35,405               35,405               35,405               35,405               
Construction in Progress -                    72,849               -                    -                    -                    72,849               
Buildings 78,574,958         81,793,169         1,735,148           1,875,539           80,310,106         83,668,708         
Improv. other than buildings 25,068,836         26,848,086         769,470             830,244             25,838,306         27,678,330         
Machinery and equipment 4,551,941           4,375,127           291,169             120,330             4,843,110           4,495,457           
Infrastructure (bridges) 3,185,866           839,966             -                    -                    3,185,866           839,966             
Infrastructure (roads) 232,300,300       238,256,718       -                    -                    232,300,300       238,256,718       

     Total 362,163,967$  370,196,196$  9,146,848$      9,177,174$      371,310,815$  379,373,370$  

Government Activities Business-type Activities Total

 
 

Additional information on Uintah County’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements. 
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Long-term debt 

At the end of the current year, Uintah County had total bonded debt outstanding of $35,972.  The debt 
represents revenue bonds secured by specified revenue sources and general obligation (G.O.) bonds 
backed by the full faith of the County. Total long-term debt as of December 31, 2020 was $47,289. 

Table 4 
Outstanding Debt at Year-end 

 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

G.O. bonds 27,065,000$    28,445,000$    -$              -$              27,065,000$    28,445,000$    
Bond premium 2,372,205       2,541,648       -                -                2,372,205       2,541,648       
Revenue bonds 8,906,852       18,469,352     -                -                8,906,852       18,469,352     
Compensated abs. 1,861,600       1,967,714       150,833          231,700          2,012,433       2,199,414       
Termination benefits 1,102,698       1,068,025       -                -                1,102,698       1,068,025       
NPL 5,237,970       9,044,960       279,234          485,151          5,517,204       9,530,111       
Tax refund 311,701          415,602          -                -                311,701          415,602          
Closure liability -                -                811                27,558           811                27,558           

    Total 46,858,026$ 61,952,301$ 430,878$      744,409$      47,288,904$ 62,696,710$ 

TotalGovernment Activities Business-Type Activities

 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to two percent 
of its total fair market value of taxable property in the county. The current debt limitation for Uintah 
County is $76,297.  On December 31, 2020 Uintah County had $27,065 general obligation debt.  

Additional information on Uintah County’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to financial 
statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates: 

 The Seven County Infrastructure Coalition is in the design stage for completing a railway that 
will connect the Uinta Basin with the national rail network. The railway will provide the long-
understood need for a cost-effective solution for additional transportation infrastructure in the 
Uinta Basin. The Uinta Basin Railway will impact the local community in a myriad of ways. The 
Uinta Basin Railway will provide economic stability through the creation of well-paying jobs.  
The Uinta Basin Railway will also increase opportunities for the Basin’s main industries, such as 
mining, oil and gas, and agriculture and livestock, this will help diversify the economy, provide 
road safety, and increase revenues for the local economies and governments. 
 

 Due largely to effects from the COVID-19 pandemic Uintah County saw their unemployment rate 
peak in April 2020 at 15.9%. Uintah County has been slower to recover than much of the rest of 
the state. The unemployment rate continues to be amongst the highest in the state. The 
unemployment rate is improving, and Uintah County ended the year with an 8.6% unemployment 
rate. While most industries were able to remain fairly stable, 2 of the larger employment 
industries, namely mining and government, saw substantial jobs loss. 2021 should see 
improvements in the unemployment rate.  
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 Building Permits: 

 

 The unemployment rates: 

 

 Uintah County paid off two long-term debts during 2020. The first was the principal payment of 
the Library in the amount of $2,547,125.  The second payoff was the CIB Loan for the Public 
Service Complex which totaled $6,481,000. The combined total for the payoffs of these loans 
was $9,028,125. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Uintah County’s finances for 
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. As disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements, separate issued financial statements of component units may be requested from the 
individual component units’ administrative office in Vernal, Utah.  Questions concerning any of 
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Uintah County Clerk-Auditor, 147 East Main, Vernal, Utah, 84078.   

Building Permits Residential Commercial Non-residential 
2019 48 13 $4,706,444 
2020 67 13 $4,244,275 

 +19 - -462,169 
 

Unemployment Rates Uintah County State of Utah National Average 
 2019 4.5% 2.4% 3.5% 

2020 8.6% 3.3% 6.7% 
Change +4.1% +0.9% +3.2% 

    
 



Uintah County 
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13 
 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
  
 

Governmental Business-type Component 

Activities Activities Totals Units
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OF RESOURCES:
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 66,199,863$             3,019,829$               69,219,692$             20,405,508$             
Investments -                            -                            -                            6,729,555                 
Accounts receivable, net 581,857                    31,668                      613,525                    2,992,937                 
Taxes receivable 3,630,601                 135,017                    3,765,618                 -                            
Due from other governments 1,372,491                 -                            1,372,491                 344,278                    
Inventory  -                            15,939                      15,939                      99,206                      
Prepaid expenses -                            -                            -                            459,712                    
Restricted cash and investments 9,686,454                 20,696,342               30,382,796               3,864,842                 
Capital lease receivable form component units:
   Current portion 193,391                    -                            193,391                    -                            
   Noncurrent portion 2,505,002                 -                            2,505,002                 -                            
Other investments -                            -                            -                            322,909                    
Capital Assets:
   Non-depreciable 18,482,066               6,351,060                 24,833,126               2,501,635                 
   Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciaiton 343,681,901             2,795,790                 346,477,691             43,753,340               
Net  pension asset -                            -                            -                            49,621                      
         Total capital assets, net 362,163,967             9,146,850                 371,310,817             46,304,596               

Total assets 446,333,626             33,045,645               479,379,271             81,523,543               

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - refunding bonds 3,316,482                 -                            3,316,482                 -                            
Deferred outflows - pensions 3,748,353                 199,756                    3,948,109                 1,598,217                 
         Total deferred outflows of resources 7,064,835$               199,756$                  7,264,591$               1,598,217$               

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:

LIABILITIES:
Warrants outstanding 2,185,115$               56,221$                    2,241,336$               -$                          
Accounts payable 999,427                    202,564                    1,201,991                 1,548,602                 
Salaries Payable 41,423                      7,757                        49,180                      419,586                    
Accrued liabilities 339,160                    5,162                        344,322                    443,420                    
Client trust payable -                            -                            -                            86,513                      
Deposit payable -                            -                            -                            750                           
Unearned revenue -                            -                            -                            304,040                    
Accrued interest payable 154,723                    -                            154,723                    27,079                      
Revenue and G.O. bonds payable:

Due within one year 2,046,500                 -                            2,046,500                 2,953,328                 
Due in more than one year 36,297,557               -                            36,297,557               10,355,379               

Tax refund liability 311,701                    -                            311,701                    -                            
Termination benefits liability 1,102,698                 -                            1,102,698                 -                            
Closure and post closure costs payable -                            811                           811                           -                            
Compensated absences 1,861,600                 150,833                    2,012,433                 292,188                    
Net pension liability 5,237,970                 279,234                    5,517,204                 2,223,303                 

   Total Liabilities 50,577,874               702,582                    51,280,456               18,654,188               

Deferred inflows of resources - grants 483,267                    -                            483,267                    23,077                      
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 2,597,434                 140,149                    2,737,583                 1,477,454                 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 3,080,701                 140,149                    3,220,850                 1,500,531                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 324,542,510             9,146,850                 333,689,360             40,358,800               
Restricted for:

Assessing and collecting 1,684,685                 -                            1,684,685                 -                            
Flood control 1,895,364                 -                            1,895,364                 -                            
Library 2,554,798                 -                            2,554,798                 -                            
Tri-county health 2,204,270                 -                            2,204,270                 -                            
Transient room 487,821                    -                            487,821                    -                            
Food service 479,545                    -                            479,545                    -                            
Class "B" roads 10,835,492               -                            10,835,492               -                            
Municipal building authority 8,018,608                 -                            8,018,608                 -                            
Tort liability 1,191,275                 -                            1,191,275                 -                            
Debt service 1,323,900                 -                            1,323,900                 2,732,434                 
Permanent funds 8,116,614                 -                            8,116,614                 -                            
Uintah care center -                            20,456,995               20,456,995               -                            
Landfill post closure reserve -                            239,347                    239,347                    -                            
Client trust -                            -                            -                            18,500                      

Unrestricted 36,405,004               2,559,478                 38,964,482               19,857,307               
Total net position 399,739,886$           32,402,670$             432,142,556$           62,967,041$             

Primary Government

 



U
in

ta
h 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
St

at
em

en
t o

f A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

Fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

0 
  

14
 

 
Th

e 
no

te
s t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 st

at
em

en
ts

 a
re

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

hi
s s

ta
te

m
en

t. 
 

 
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g
C

ap
ita

l
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r
G

ra
nt

s 
an

d
G

ra
nt

s 
an

d
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
C

om
po

ne
nt

Ex
pe

ns
es

Se
rv

ic
es

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

A
ct

iv
iti

es
A

ct
iv

iti
es

To
ta

l
Un

its
PR

IM
A

R
Y 

G
O

V
ER

N
M

EN
T:

Go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
:

Ge
ne

ra
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t
14

,8
18

,0
86

$ 
   

   
2,

16
8,

56
8

$ 
   

   
 

46
0,

52
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

2,
18

8,
99

7)
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
2,

18
8,

99
7)

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

af
et

y
13

,7
03

,1
55

   
   

   
1,

27
4,

70
1

   
   

   
 

1,
66

3,
72

0
   

   
   

  
94

,8
36

   
   

   
   

   
(1

0,
66

9,
89

8)
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
0,

66
9,

89
8)

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

4,
47

7,
82

6
   

   
   

  
63

,1
79

   
   

   
   

   
3,

65
4,

78
7

   
   

   
  

5,
03

6,
42

6
   

   
   

 
4,

27
6,

56
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

27
6,

56
6

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
9,

59
2,

53
7

   
   

   
  

67
7,

96
1

   
   

   
   

 
4,

24
7,

66
4

   
   

   
  

1,
46

9,
25

0
   

   
   

 
(3

,1
97

,6
62

)
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(3

,1
97

,6
62

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pa
rk

s,
 re

cr
ea

tio
n,

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 p

ro
pe

rty
2,

51
5,

48
0

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

46
,0

71
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,4
69

,4
09

)
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,4
69

,4
09

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
7,

87
6,

89
8

   
   

   
  

2,
70

6,
06

7
   

   
   

 
40

1,
64

0
   

   
   

   
  

43
9,

57
7

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,3
29

,6
14

)
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,3
29

,6
14

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 fi
sc

al
 c

ha
rg

es
1,

18
9,

99
7

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,1

89
,9

97
)

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,1

89
,9

97
)

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

To
ta

l G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
54

,1
73

,9
79

$ 
   

6,
89

0,
47

6
$ 

   
 

10
,4

74
,4

03
$ 

   
7,

04
0,

08
9

$ 
   

 
(2

9,
76

9,
01

1)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
9,

76
9,

01
1)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

Bu
si

ne
ss

-ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
:

Ca
re

 C
en

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
es

te
rn

 P
ar

k
1,

54
8,

69
6

   
   

   
  

17
0,

73
1

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
77

,9
65

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
77

,9
65

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

La
nd

fil
l

75
0,

08
3

   
   

   
   

  
77

2,
59

1
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
,5

08
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

,5
08

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
18

3,
62

4
   

   
   

   
  

18
1,

83
6

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,7
88

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,7
88

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
To

ta
l B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
2,

48
2,

40
3

   
   

   
  

1,
12

5,
15

8
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
57

,2
45

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
57

,2
45

)
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
To

ta
l P

ri
m

ar
y 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

56
,6

56
,3

82
   

   
 

8,
01

5,
63

4
   

   
  

10
,4

74
,4

03
   

   
7,

04
0,

08
9

   
   

  
(2

9,
76

9,
01

1)
   

   
   

 
(1

,3
57

,2
45

)
   

   
   

(3
1,

12
6,

25
6)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
O

M
PO

N
EN

T 
UN

IT
S:

U
in

ta
h 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Sp

ec
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

tri
ct

10
,5

13
,4

57
   

   
   

63
,1

24
   

   
   

   
   

25
7,

57
6

   
   

   
   

  
8,

10
6,

21
8

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,0
86

,5
39

)
   

   
 

Tr
i-C

ou
nt

y 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 &

 S
ub

. A
bu

se
7,

90
3,

12
8

   
   

   
  

5,
68

6,
82

3
   

   
   

 
2,

61
8,

82
6

   
   

   
  

85
4,

30
0

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
25

6,
82

1
   

   
  

U
ni

ta
h 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
5,

39
8,

65
9

   
   

   
  

1,
42

5,
40

8
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
,9

73
,2

51
)

   
   

 
U

in
ta

h 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

tri
ct

7,
89

9,
44

8
   

   
   

  
5,

42
6,

98
1

   
   

   
 

78
3,

73
2

   
   

   
   

  
44

4,
03

7
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,2
44

,6
98

)
   

   
 

A
ni

m
al

 C
on

tro
l S

pe
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

is
tri

ct
99

4,
49

0
   

   
   

   
  

72
,4

18
   

   
   

   
   

17
3,

74
5

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(7
48

,3
27

)
   

   
   

 
U

in
ta

h 
Im

pa
ct

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Sp

ec
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

t.
2,

14
3,

65
1

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

65
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,0

78
,6

51
)

   
   

 
Fi

re
 S

up
pr

es
si

on
 S

pe
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

is
tri

ct
1,

88
2,

64
0

   
   

   
  

14
8,

20
5

   
   

   
   

 
38

7,
08

7
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,3
47

,3
48

)
   

   
 

   
To

ta
l c

om
po

ne
nt

 u
ni

ts
36

,7
35

,4
73

$ 
   

12
,8

22
,9

59
$ 

  
4,

28
5,

96
6

$ 
   

  
9,

40
4,

55
5

$ 
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

0,
22

1,
99

3)
  

Ge
ne

ra
l R

ev
en

ue
s:

   
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
es

18
,7

85
,4

35
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

,7
85

,4
35

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

D
el

in
qu

en
t t

ax
es

61
0,

41
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

61
0,

41
7

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Sa
le

s 
ta

xe
s

3,
35

4,
27

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
71

8,
42

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

07
2,

69
0

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pa

ym
en

t i
n 

lie
u 

of
 ta

x
3,

87
3,

62
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

87
3,

62
8

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

in
er

al
 le

as
e 

re
ve

nu
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

25
7

   
   

  
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 o
th

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(6

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
(6

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
1,

90
0

   
   

   
  

Ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

84
0,

63
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

3,
88

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

27
4,

52
1

   
   

   
   

  
41

3,
00

3
   

   
   

  
Ga

in
 (l

os
s)

 o
n 

sa
le

 o
f a

ss
et

s
11

5,
23

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

5,
23

5
   

   
   

   
   

  
49

,6
52

   
   

   
   

 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

18
2,

62
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

74
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

8,
37

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

3,
59

6
   

   
   

  
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

in
(o

ut
)

(5
67

,2
04

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
56

7,
20

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

To
ta

l g
en

er
al

 re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
al

 it
em

s
27

,1
95

,0
37

   
   

   
   

  
1,

14
5,

28
6

   
   

   
   

 
28

,3
40

,3
23

   
   

   
   

10
,8

45
,4

08
   

 

   
   

   
Ch

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
(2

,5
73

,9
74

)
   

   
   

   
  

(2
11

,9
59

)
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,7

85
,9

33
)

   
   

   
   

 
62

3,
41

5
   

   
   

  
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 - 

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
40

1,
89

7,
48

1
   

   
   

   
32

,6
14

,6
29

   
   

   
  

43
4,

51
2,

11
0

   
   

   
 

62
,3

43
,6

26
   

   
Pr

io
r P

er
io

d 
A

dj
us

tm
en

t
41

6,
37

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

6,
37

9
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 - 
En

di
ng

39
9,

73
9,

88
6

$ 
   

   
   

32
,4

02
,6

70
$ 

   
   

  
43

2,
14

2,
55

6
$ 

   
   

 
62

,9
67

,0
41

$ 

N
et

 (E
xp

en
se

) R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

Pr
og

ra
m

 R
ev

en
ue

s
Pr

im
ar

y 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t

 



Uintah County 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 

As of December 31, 2020 
 
 

15 
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Other Total
General Municipal Class "B" Municipal Building Capital Governmental Governmental

Fund Service Funds Roads Fund Authority Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 12,946,138$      4,066,709$            10,013,038$          6,795,705$                    17,644,856$      12,919,379$       64,385,825$       
Accounts receivable,net 170,807             53,777                   -                        157,500                         -                     199,773              581,857              
Taxes receivable 1,890,405          200,206                 157,553                 -                                 -                     1,382,437           3,630,601           
Due from other governments 734,483             -                        664,901                 -                                 784,929             -                      2,184,313           
Restricted cash and investments -                     -                        -                        1,065,403 -                     8,521,051           9,586,454           

     Total Assets 15,741,833$   4,320,692$         10,835,492$       8,018,608$                  18,429,785$   23,022,640$    80,369,050$    

LIABILITIES 
Warrants outstanding 1,796,611          56,375                   -                        -                                 207,095             125,034              2,185,115$         
Accounts payable 722,898             104,892                 -                        -                                 -                     171,637              999,427              
Salaries payable -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     41,423                41,423                
Accrued liabilities 251,565             68,921                   -                        -                                 -                     18,674                339,160              
Deferred inflows of resources 465,215             -                        -                        -                                 -                     18,052                483,267              
Due to other governments -                     -                        -                        -                                 811,822             -                      811,822              

   Total Liabilities 3,236,289          230,188                 -                        -                                 1,018,917          374,820              4,860,214           

FUND BALANCE:
Restricted For:

Assessing and collecting -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     1,684,685           1,684,685           
Cemeteeries -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     390,127              390,127              
Flood Control -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     1,895,364           1,895,364           
Library -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     2,554,798           2,554,798           
Tri-County health -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     2,204,270           2,204,270           
Transient room -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     487,821              487,821              
Food service -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     479,545              479,545              
Class "B" roads -                     -                        10,835,492            -                                 -                     -                      10,835,492         
Municipal Building Authority -                     -                        -                        8,018,608                      -                     -                      8,018,608           
Tort liability -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     1,191,275           1,191,275           
Debt service -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     1,323,900           1,323,900           
Permanent funds -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     8,116,614           8,116,614           

Committed:
Municipal services -                     4,090,504              -                        -                                 -                     -                      4,090,504           
Regional History Center -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     217,756              217,756              
911 emergency service -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     1,524,346           1,524,346           

Assigned:
Historical preservation -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     45,518                45,518                
Drug Court -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     30,159                30,159                
Cemeteeries -                     -                        -                        -                                 -                     501,642              501,642              
Capital Projects -                     -                        -                        -                                 17,410,868        -                      17,410,868         

Unassigned 12,505,544        -                        -                        -                                 -                     -                      12,505,544         
   Total fund equity 12,505,544        4,090,504              10,835,492            8,018,608                      17,410,868        22,647,820         75,508,836         
      Total liabilities and fund equity 15,741,833$   4,320,692$         10,835,492$       8,018,608$                  18,429,785$   23,022,640$    80,369,050$    

Special Revenue Funds
Major Governmental Funds
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 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
  
 

Total fund balances - governmental fund types: 75,508,836$           

Amount reported in the govermental activities on the satement of net position
are different because:

Capital Assets used in the governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.  These assets 
concists of: 362,163,967           

Long-term contracts for sale of capital assets creates a long-term contract receivable.
In the fund statements, collections on these receivables are shown as revenue.  In the
government-wide financial statements the contract receivable is capitalized and 
payments are applied against the contract receivable.  This is the balance of contract
receivables outstanding. 2,698,393               

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of information
systems to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 1,914,038               

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds: (42,545,348)            

Net position of governmental activities 399,739,886$         
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Other Total
General Municipal Class "B" Municipal Building Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Services Fund Roads Fund Authority Projects Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes 10,640,067$       1,946,495$          1,705,414$       -$                           -$                  9,174,416$         23,466,392$           
Charges for services 4,292,135 704,150 -                    750,265 8,250 457,940              6,212,740               
Fines and forfeitures 329,467 -                      -                    -                             -                    -                      329,467                  
Intergovernmental revenues 6,520,716 3,287,933 4,023,067 1,500,000                  1,469,250 3,870,884           20,671,850             
Licenses and permits 102,660 245,609 -                    -                             -                    -                      348,269                  
Interest income 99,078 27,648 90,122 135,353                     178,369 310,062              840,632                  
Miscellaneous 10,171                85,355                 43,844              -                             -                    43,254                182,624                  

   Total Revenues 21,994,294         6,297,190            5,862,447         2,385,618                  1,655,869         13,856,556         52,051,974             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 7,160,524           946,149               -                    3,508                         -                    3,053,081           11,163,262             
Public safety 7,580,360           4,454,985            -                    -                             -                    130,617              12,165,962             
Public health 548,080              -                      -                    -                             -                    3,847,698           4,395,778               
Highways and public improvements 625,606              96,848                 3,042,252         -                             -                    -                      3,764,706               
Parks, recreation, and public property 57,733                -                      -                    -                             -                    2,419,563           2,477,296               
Conservation and economic development 5,742,164           -                      -                    -                             -                    1,704,758           7,446,922               
Capital outlay 8,733                  -                      -                    -                             1,540,503         87,968                1,637,204               

Debt Service:
Principal retirement -                     -                      -                    9,562,500                  -                    1,380,000           10,942,500             
Interest and fiscal charges -                     -                      -                    83,042                       -                    1,106,955           1,189,997               

   Total Expenditures 21,723,200         5,497,982            3,042,252         9,649,050                  1,540,503         13,730,640         55,183,627             

Excess Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 271,094              799,208               2,820,195         (7,263,432)                 115,366            125,916              (3,131,653)             

Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of fixed assets 179,899              65,226                 -                    -                             -                    -                      245,125                  
Contributions to other governments -                     -                      (890,776)           -                             -                    -                      (890,776)                
Transfers in 120,956              -                      -                    -                             -                    930,000              1,050,956               
Transfers (out) (1,097,204)         -                      -                    -                             -                    (520,956)             (1,618,160)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (796,349)            65,226                 (890,776)           -                             -                    409,044              (1,212,855)             

     Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
     Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (525,255)            864,434               1,929,419         (7,263,432)                 115,366            534,960              (4,344,508)             

Fund Balances - Beginning 13,030,799         3,226,070            8,906,073         15,282,040                17,295,502       21,696,481         79,436,965             
Prior Period Adjustment -                     -                      -                    -                    416,379              416,379                  
Fund Balances - Ending 12,505,544$       4,090,504$          10,835,492$     8,018,608$                17,410,868$     22,647,820$       75,508,836$           

Major Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds
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Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (4,344,508)$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period:

Capital Outlays 4,849,144                  
Less: depreciaiton expense (12,069,794)              

      Differencebetween expenditures and depreciaiton (7,220,650)             

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets:
          Loss on disposal of capital assets (129,890)                

The governmental fund reports bond proceeds as an other financing source, while repayment
of the bond principal is reported as an expenditures.  In the statement of activities, bond
proceeds are shown as debt and repayment of bond principle reduces outstanding debt.  Interest 
is recognized as an expenditure in the governmental funds when it is paid.  In the statement of 
activities, interest expense is recognized aas it accrues, regardless of when it is due.  The net
effect of these differences in the treatment of bonds and related items is as follows:

Amortization of bond premium on refunding bonds 169,443                         
Amortization of difference in net carrying amount
   and reacquisition price refunding bonds (236,892)                       
Repayment of bond principal 11,111,943                    

11,044,494             

Pension expense reported in the goverenment-wide statement of activities does not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore is not reported as an expense in governmental funds. (898,342)                

To reduce charges for service revenue for payment made on contract receivable. (193,391)                

Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the governmental fund, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position. 103,901                  

The net change in termination benefits  and payable. (34,673)                  

Compensated absences are not accrued as an expense in governmental funds; however, this
expense is reported in the statement of activities. 106,114                  

Reversal of prior year's deferred inflows that were recognized in the government-wide statement
of net position. (867,182)                

The net loss of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. (139,847)                

Change in net position of governmental activities (2,573,974)$           
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22 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

 
GIRT Trust OPEB Trust Custodial Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 180,627$        -$               7,940,218$     
Accounts receivable, net -                 -                 404
Taxes receivable -                 -                 1,134,541
Restricted cash and investments -                 -                 383,452          

     Total assets 180,627          -                 9,458,615       

LIABILITIES
Warrants outstanding -                 -                 1,303,194       

   Total liabilities -                 -                 1,303,194       

NET POSITION
Restricted:

GIRT Trust 180,627          -                 -                 
Other postemployement benefits -                 261,536          8,145,910       

   Total net position 180,627$        261,536$        8,145,910$     
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

 

GIRT Trust OPEB Trust Custodial Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Private and public contributions 5,693$            -$               53,751,256$   
Interest income 1,773              31,219            -                 

     Total additions 7,466              31,219            53,751,256     

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments -                 7,245              -                 
Fees -                 230                 -                 
Tax distributions -                 -                 56,066,402

   Total deductions -                 7,475              56,066,402     

Change in net position 7,466              23,744            (2,315,146)     

Net position - beginning 173,161          237,792          10,461,056     

Net position - ending 180,627$        261,536$        8,145,910$      
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of Uintah County (the County) have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to local 
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant policies of the County are described below.  

A. Reporting Entity 
 
Uintah County, Utah (the County) operates under a three-member County Commission form of 
government. The County provides the following services: County-wide services, such as those 
provided by elected officials (including assessing and collecting property taxes for all taxing 
districts in the County), health and human services to the unincorporated areas, such as fire and 
police protection, developmental services, street lighting, traffic engineering, highways, planning 
and zoning, animal services, and justice courts.  
 
The accompanying financial statements include the County, which is a political subdivision with 
corporate powers created under Utah State law, and all of its component units, collectively 
referred to as the financial reporting entity. Blended component units, although legally separate 
entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations. Discretely presented component 
units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize 
that they are legally separate from the government.  
 
The criteria used by the County to determine the reporting entity consists of including any 
governmental department, agency, institution, commission, or other governmental organization of 
which the County’s governing board has financial accountability. Financial accountability is 
derived from the governmental units’ power and includes, but is not limited to, financial 
interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to 
significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. Financial accountability 
implies that a governmental unit is dependent on another and the dependent unit should be 
reported as part of the other. According to these criteria, the County considered the following 
entities to be component units.  
 
Blended Component Units 
  
Tri-County Health Department – The department services the citizens who live in the Tri-County 
are of Daggett, Uintah, and Duchesne Counties. Utah State law allows the creation of multi-
county health departments. Local health departments are responsible within their boundaries for 
providing, directly or indirectly, basic public health services. The County Commissioners, within 
the boundaries of the health district, appoints the health district board of directors. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

A. Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Municipal Building Authority of Uintah County (MBA) – The MBA was created by the County 
Commission as a body politic and corporate for the purpose of financing, owning, leasing, 
operating facilities to meet the needs of the County government. It is comprised of a governing 
body that has been appointed by the County Commission and may be removed or replaced at any 
time by its direction.  
  
Discrete Component Units 
 
These component units are entities, which are legally separate from the County, but are 
financially accountable to the County and whose relationships with the County are such that 
exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The 
Component Units, column of the government-wide financial statements includes the financial 
date of these entities.  
 
Uintah Basin Tri-County Mental Health and Substance Abuse Local Authority (Northeastern 
Counseling Center) – The local Mental Health Authority has been established by the County 
Commissioners for the purpose of directing and providing mental health and substance abuse 
services to person within the Mental Health District. The County Commissioners within the 
District appoint members of the board of directors. The District has a fiscal year end June 30, 
2020, which was audited, and their report issued under separate cover. An audit report can be 
obtained from their administrative office in Vernal, Utah.  
 
Uintah Recreation Special Service District – The District was created by the adoption of a 
resolution establishing a service district. The District has been established as a separate body 
politic and corporate. The County appointed the board governing the District. The District was 
created for the purpose of managing and operating parks and recreation facilities and recreation 
programs in Uintah County. The District was audited, and their report issued under separate 
cover. An audit report can be obtained from their administrative office in Vernal, Utah. 
 
Uintah Transportation Special Service District – The District was created by the adoption of a 
resolution establishing a service district. The District has been established as a separate body 
politic for the purpose of building, maintaining, or improving roads within the District’s 
boundaries. The District was audited, and their report issued under separate cover. An audit report 
can be obtained from their administrative office in Vernal, Utah. 
 
Uintah Health Care Special Service District – The District was created by the adoption of a 
resolution establishing the service district. The District is to be administered by an Administrative 
Control Board, which is to be appointed by the Board of the County Commissioners of Uintah 
County. The purpose of the District is to oversee, administer, 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

A. Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Discrete Component Units (Continued) 
 
and manage a county-owned, long-term, residential health care and day care facility that is 
responsive to the needs of the residents, their families, and the community at large, through a 
consistently high standard of customized, clinical care. The District also oversees and manages 
the activities of the senior program of the County. The boundaries of the District are the same as 
Uintah County. The District was audited, and their report issued under separate cover. An audit 
report can be obtained from their administrative office in Vernal, Utah.  
 
Uintah Animal Control & Shelter Special Service District – The District was created by the 
adoption of a resolution establishing the service district. The District is to be administered by an 
Administrative Control Board, which is to be appointed by the Board of County Commissioners 
of Uintah County. The purpose of the District is to manage the proper treatment of animals and 
protect citizens within the District. Information about the District and its function can be obtained 
from the administrative office in Vernal, Utah. 
 
Uintah Impact Mitigation Special Service District – The District was created by the adoption of a 
resolution establishing the service district. The District is administered by an Administrative 
Control Board, which is appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of Uintah County. 
The purpose of the District is to promote economic development and provide funding for 
educational scholarships within the District and manage the impact of growth experienced in the 
District. Information about the District and its function can be obtained from their administrative 
office in Vernal, Utah.  
 
Uintah Fire Suppression Special Service District – The District was created by the adoption of a 
resolution establishing the service district. The District is administered by an Administrative 
Control Board, which is appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of Uintah County. 
The District was created to better organize the fire protection service within the County and 
surrounding area, to provide protection to citizens within the District from fires and make 
available other emergency services. Information about the District and its function can be 
obtained from their administrative office in Vernal, Utah.  
 

B.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Accounting  
 
The County’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a 
Statement of Net Position, Statement of Activities, along with separate fund financial statements. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Accounting (Continued) 
 
Government- Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and 
its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from 
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees charged to external parties for goods and services.  
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function are of offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function. Direct expenses can include certain indirect costs (administrative 
overhead charges) that are automatically allocated to the various functions. Program revenues 
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function; and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues but are reported instead as general 
revenues.  
 
Fund Financial Statements  
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, component 
unit funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The remaining governmental 
and enterprise funds are combined into a single column and reported as other (non-major) funds. 
The internal service fund is reported in a single column on the proprietary fund financial 
statements.  
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)  
 
Governmental-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provided have been met. The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as 
assets in the government-wide financial statements, rather than reported as expenditures. 
Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statement, 
rather than as another financing source as in governmental funds. Amounts paid to reduce long-
term debt of the County are reported as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as an 
expenditure in the government-wide financial statements.  
 
Government Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. “Measurable” means that amounts can be 
reasonably determined within the current period. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
Exceptions to this general rule include accumulated unpaid compensated absences and principal 
and interest on general long-term debt, which are recognized when due.  
 
The County reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund – The General Fund accounts for all activities not accounted for by other funds of 
the County. The principal source of revenue for this fund is property taxes.  
 
Municipal Services Fund – The Municipal Services Fund provides services to the unincorporated 
County residences, i.e., law enforcement, building and zoning, etc. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)  
 
Government Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Class “B” Roads – The Class “B” Roads Fund is used to account for maintenance of County 
roads.  
 
Capital Project Fund – The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction of capital assets other than those financed by proprietary 
funds.  
 
In accordance with GASB 84, the County reports Cemetery Board Funds as a non-major fund 
beginning in 2020 rather than a fiduciary fund. 
 
The County’s non-major governmental funds include other special revenue funds, the Debt 
Service Fund and a Permanent Fund. The non-major special revenue funds account for specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures, for specified 
purposes. The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources used for the payment of interest and 
principal on general long-term debt obligations. The permanent fund accounts for resources 
earned and held in the tax stability fund to be used in future periods.  
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Internal service funds are 
used to account for the goods and services provided by one fund to other funds of the County, 
rather than to the general public. The financial statements in that they both use the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
 
Proprietary funds distinguish between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. 
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing goods and services relating to the primary 
operations of the proprietary fund. Other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating.  
 
The County reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
Care Center Fund – The Care Center Fund accounts for the resources needed for the repayment of 
debt used in the construction of the Uintah Care Center building and to help in the funding of 
certain health care services in the County.  
 
Western Park Fund – The Western Park Fund accounts for the resource and expenditures in the 
operating and maintaining of the Western Park Conference Center, Western Park Arena, and 
related facilities associated with the activities at the arena.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)  
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Landfill Fund – The Landfill Fund was created for the operation of the Uintah County Landfill. 
The fund receives all funds generated by the used of the landfill and the expending of money for 
the operation and maintenance of the facility.  
 
The County’s non-major proprietary funds include the Telecom Fund. The Telecom Fund 
accounts for the resources used in maintaining tele-communication services for the County.  
 
Internal Service Fund 
 
The Internal Service Fund accounts for the resources used to pay health insurance premiums for 
the County. The Internal Service Fund is reported on the proprietary fund statements. In the 
government-wide financial statement, the internal service fund is included with governmental 
activities since most of the services provided by the internal service fund are for governmental 
purposes.  
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for other organizations or individuals. These statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The County has the following types of fiduciary funds.  
 
Private Purpose – The County has a private purpose trust fund. The GIRT Trust fund is interest 
received by the County from a private contribution, which is used to help under privileged 
children.  
 
OPEB Trust – The Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Fund accounts for the 
activities of a single employer identified benefit plan, which accumulates resources for post-
employment health care insurance benefits to all eligible employees. The financial statements of 
the OPEB Trust Fund are reported using the economic resources management focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements (Continued)  
 
Custodial Funds – Custodial Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent 
for other governments, private organizations, or individuals. Custodial Funds include Treasurer’s 
Tax Collection and Special Deposits. Custodial Funds are custodial in nature and are presented 
using the accrual basis of accounting now required under GASB 84.  
 
Interfund Transactions 
 
Interfund Transactions represent transactions between different funds within the County. In 
general, interfund activity including internal service fund transactions have been eliminated from 
the government-wide financial statements in an effort to minimize the doubling-up of revenues 
and expenditures resulting from such transactions. Interfund services provided and used between 
different functional categories, however, have not been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statement so as not to distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in the 
various functions concerned.  
 
Transfers between governmental and business-type activities are reported at the net amount in the 
government-wide Statement of Activities. Interfund receivables and payables have been 
eliminated from the government-wide Statement of Net Position except for those amounts due 
between governmental and business-type activities. Such amounts are reported at the net amount 
as “internal balances” and offset each other to result in a zero balance in the total column.  
 
Program Revenues/Operating Revenues and Expenses from Non-Operating Items 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges for fees, rental, material, supplies, or 
services provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
Likewise, general revenues include all property taxes.  
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. Budgetary Data 
 
Budgets are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all governmental funds and 
on the accrual basis for proprietary funds. Budgets are not adopted for the custodial fund. All 
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The following procedures are used in establishing 
the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
 

1. A formal budget is adopted for all funds, which require a budget: all general, special 
revenue, debt service, capital projects, permanent funds, and enterprise funds. The budget 
is a complete financial plan, which identifies all estimated revenues and all 
appropriations for expenditure for the year. The budget must balance—that is estimated 
revenues and other financing sources must equal appropriated expenditures.  

2. By November 1, the County Auditor submits to the Board of County Commissioners a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year for all funds beginning January 1.  

3. The Board of County Commissioners discusses and approves the budget and sets a date 
for a public hearing on the proposed budget.  

4. A public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer comments and the budget is adopted.  
5. The Commission can transfer budgeted amounts between line items or departments by 

resolution, but any action that increases the total general fund budget must be approved 
by resolution only after a public hearing. (The budgets of other funds may be increased 
after giving public notice.) 
 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and investment management in the County is administered by the County Treasurer in 
accordance with the Utah Money Management Act, Section 51-7 of the Utah Code. The County’s 
cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, 
including investments in the Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF).  
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to 
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 
Statement of cash flow is presented for proprietary funds under the direct method. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)  
 
Investments 
 
Investments are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market prices at December 31, 2020. 
The difference between cost and fair value is recognized as unrealized gain or (loss) in the 
financial statements.  
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined on a first-in, first-out basis. 
Inventories are accounted for under the consumption method where inventories are recorded as 
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.  
 
Accounts Receivable  
 
Material receivables in governmental funds and government activities include revenue accruals 
such as property tax, grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually 
both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions that are collectible but not available 
are deferred. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 
days since they would be considered both measurable and available at the fund level.  
 
Proprietary type funds, business-type activities, and material receivables consist of all revenues 
earned at year-end and not yet received.  
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets include land, right of ways, water rights, buildings, improvements other than 
buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure (roads and bridges) and construction-in-
progress. These assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements in the relevant 
column on the Statement of Net Position under governmental or business-type activities. 
Proprietary fund capital assets are also reported in the appropriate fund statements. Capital assets 
acquired by governmental funds are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund financial 
statements. The capitalization threshold for personal property is defined to be assets with a useful 
life greater than one year and costing at least $5,000. Assets purchased or constructed are 
generally recorded at cost. If precise cost is not available (as was the case with certain 
infrastructure), the asset is recorded at estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)  
 
Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
When constructing capital assets, interest expense incurred relating to governmental or 
proprietary activities is not capitalized.  
 
Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations for 
proprietary funds and is charged to the various functional expenses or business-type activities in 
the government-wide Statement of Activities. Accumulated depreciation is reported on 
proprietary fund and government- wide Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over 
the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
 
In addition to assets, financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, 
the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
 
Accounts and Warrants Payable  
 
Accounts and warrants payable in the governmental and proprietary activities includes the 
payables recorded by the County at December 31, 2020related to normal monthly expenditures 
and capital expenditures for all funds.  
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)  
 
Salaries Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
 
Salaries payables consist of wages earned by employees and accrued liabilities consist of payroll 
liabilities such as FICA, retirement, and health insurance which had not yet been paid at 
December 31, 2020. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Accrued unused Paid Time Off (PTO), which has vested to the employee, is reported as a liability 
in the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities and for proprietary 
funds.  
 
The following is a description of the County’s policy related to Paid Time Off and Sick Leave 
Reserve: 
 

 Paid Time Off – It is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate PTO (Paid 
Time Off) based on the years of service and hours worked. For a full-time employee, they 
will earn 6 hours of PTO for each pay period worked if the County has employed them 
for 5 years or less. Seven hours can be earned per pay period if the County has employed 
them for 6 through 10 years, and eight hours of PTO per pay period for employees the 
County has employed 11 or more years. Employees may accumulate earned but unused 
PTO up to 600 hours. Any amount of accumulated PTO over six hundred hours and not 
used at the end of the year will be forfeited by the employee. The remaining paid time off 
will be paid to employees at the time of retirement or other change of status.  
 

 Sick Leave Reserve – Employees of the County who were hired prior to December 31, 
2007, and the implementation of the PTO policy will be able to maintain sick days 
accumulated during employment. This sick leave reserve can only be used if an employee 
is absent for three or more consecutive days related to one illness verified by a physician. 
The first two days must be leave without pay or PTO, and the balance may be taken from 
the sick leave reserve. Upon retirement, the sick leave reserve account balance shall be 
paid to employees at 50% of their current pay rate.  

 
Long-Term Obligations  
 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt, and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of 
net position.  
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)  
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to and deductions 
from URS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
URS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported 
at fair value.  
 
Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
The difference between assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows is “Net 
Position” on the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and “Fund Balance” 
on the governmental fund financial statements. Net Position is divided into net investment in 
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Net position is reported as net investment in capital 
assets by taking the value of all capital assets and reducing this amount by current and prior years 
depreciation and further reducing the amount by current outstanding debt obligations incurred for 
the purpose of purchasing or construction of these capital assets. Net position is reported as 
restricted when constraints are placed upon them by external parties or are imposed by 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
 
Unrestricted net position classification is all net position that is not restricted or part of net 
investment in capital assets.  
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. The classification of these fund balances are 
defined as follows: 
 

 Non-spendable Fund Balance – Fund balances are reported as non-spendable when they 
cannot be spent because they are not spendable in form or are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 

 Restricted Fund Balance – Fund balances are reported as restricted when they are 
constrained by externally imposed legal restrictions, or by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.  

 Committed Fund Balance – Fund balances are reported as committed when they County 
Commission, the County’s highest level of decision-making authority, formally 
designates the use of resources, by resolution or ordinance, for a specific purpose. The 
same formal action must be taken to remove or change the constraints placed on the 
resources. 
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)  
 
Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 

 Assigned Fund Balance – Fund balances are recorded as assigned when the County 
intends to use funds, which are neither restricted nor committed, for a specific purpose. 
Additionally, funds in special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds are by 
their nature assigned to the purpose of those respective funds. The County Commission 
is the body which assigns funds for specific uses.  
 

 Unassigned Fund Balance – Fund balances in the general fund are reported as 
unassigned when they are neither restricted, committed, nor assigned. They may be used 
for any governmental purpose. In other governmental funds, the unassigned 
classification is only used to report a negative fund balance.  

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balance is available, it is the unwritten policy and practice of the County to consider restricted 
amounts to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which 
amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, it is the unwritten 
policy and practice of the County that committed amounts will be spent first, followed by 
assigned amount, and then unassigned amounts.  

The County has not adopted a formal policy regarding a minimum fund balance but follows 
Utah State law which requires all County’s to maintain a minimum general fund balance equal 
to 5% of total General Fund revenues to be maintained and not be budgeted. 

F. Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

G. Effect of COVID-19 
 
The COVID-19 Pandemic remains a rapidly evolving situation. The extent of the impact of 
COVID-19 on the County and financial results of our operation will depend on future 
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak within the markets in which we 
operate. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the County is uncertain. 
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments 

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

It is the County’s policy to follow the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (Utah 
Code Annotated 1953, Section 51, Chapter 7) (the Act) in handling its depository and investment 
transactions. The Act creates the Utah Money Management Council (the “Council”), a five-
member body, appointed by the Governor of the State, which exercises oversight of public 
deposits and investments.   

The County maintains a cash and investment pool that is used by all funds. Each major fund’s 
portion of this pool, and the aggregate portion of the pool relating to non-major funds and internal 
service funds, is displayed on the Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds and the Statement of 
Net Position for proprietary funds, respectively, as “cash and cash equivalents.” Total non-
fiduciary cash and cash equivalents are also reflected on the government-wide Statement of Net 
Position. The fiduciary fund’s portion is found on the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and 
Liabilities. Income from the investment of the pooled cash is allocated based on each fund’s 
balance in the pool. In addition, cash is separately held by several funds. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not 
be returned to it. The County’s deposits are insured up to $250,000 per institution that is insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Deposits in excess of the insured amount 
are uninsured and uncollateralized. At December 31, 2020, the County’s primary government 
deposits were $5,103,313, of which $708,760 were FDIC insured. 

B. Restricted Cash and Investments  
 
The County has restricted certain cash and investments in governmental and enterprise funds in 
the following amounts for the purposes indicated below: 
 

Government Funds:
Tri-County Health 408,220$             
Municipal Building Authority 1,065,403            
Permanent Funds 8,112,831            
Internal Service Fund 100,000               

Total 9,686,454$        

Enterprise Funds:
Care Center 20,456,995$        
Landfill 239,347               

Total 20,696,342$     
 

 
 Tri-County Health Fund – These are funds that have been restricted and set aside in a 

reserve account for future use. 
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

B. Restricted Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

 Municipal Building Authority Fund – These are funds that have been restricted and set 
aside in escrow and reserve accounts to be used to make principal and interest payments 
on various revenue bonds or to meet reserve retainage requirements.  

 
 Permanent Fund – The County created a Tax Stability Fund to be used at slow economic 

times. These funds cannot be used without a public hearing and notification of the 
general public and approval of the County Commissioners. 

 
 Care Center Fund – These are funds that have been generated through a special sales tax 

levy and are to be used for the current and future operation and maintenance of the 
Uintah Care Center.   

 
 Landfill Fund – The County has set aside funds on an annual basis into the Public 

Treasurers Investment Pool to be used for closure and post closure costs associated with 
its Landfills. 

The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State 
Treasurer about investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in 
strengthening the banking and credit structure of the state, and review the rules adopted under 
the authority of the State of Utah Money Management Act that relate to the deposit and 
investment public funds. 

The County follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management in handling its 
investment transactions. The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized 
as appropriate investments for the County’s funds and the conditions for making investment 
transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only through qualified depositories, 
certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities. 

Statutes authorize the County to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified 
depositories and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase 
agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized 
statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the United States Treasury 
including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage derivative products, issued 
by U.S. government sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies) such as the Federal Home Loan 
Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), and Federal National 
Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of 
political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities 
rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical 
rating organizations; shares of certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the 
money Management Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.   
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

B. Restricted Cash and Investments (Continued) 

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF). The 
PTIF is available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not 
registered with SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the 
Money Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7). The Act established the Money 
Management Council which oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF and details 
the types of authorized investments. Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed 
by the State of Utah, and participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on 
investments. 

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income gains, and 
losses of the PTIF, and net of administration fees are allocated based upon the participant’s 
average daily balance. The fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the 
value of the pool shares.0 

Fair Value of Investments 
  
Investments are carried at fair value. The County measures and records its investments using fair 
value measurement guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles. These 
guidelines recognized a three-tiered fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 

Level 1:     Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets 
Level 2:     Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and, 
Level 3:     Unobservable inputs  

 
 
The following table sets forth the recurring fair value measurements of investments: 
 

Investment Type - Debt Securities 12/31/2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money Market Mutual Funds 3,837,439$         3,837,439$         -$                  -$                  
U.S. Agencies 6,859,705           6,859,705           -                    -                    
Corporate Bonds 16,079,439         16,079,439         -                    -                    
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 67,765,820         -                    67,765,820         -                    
        Total Investments 94,542,403$    26,776,583$    67,765,820$    -$                 

Fair Value Measurement Level
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

B. Restricted Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets 
for those securities. Debt and equity securities classified in Level 2 are valued using the following 
approaches: 
 

 U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agencies, and Commercial Paper: quoted prices for identical 
securities in markets that are not active; 

 Corporate and Municipal Bonds: quoted prices for similar securities in active markets; 
 Repurchase Agreements, Negotiable Certificates of Deposit, and Collateralized Debt 

Obligations: matrix pricing based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted 
prices; 

 Money Market, Bond, and Equity Mutual Funds: published fair value per share (unit) for 
each fund; 

 Utah Public Treasurers’ investment Fund: application of the December 31, 2020 fair 
value factor, as calculated by the Utah State Treasurer, to the County’s average daily 
balance in the Fund; and 

 Donated Real Estate: recent appraisals of the real estate’s value. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The County’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from 
increasing interest rates is to comply with the State’s Money Management Act. Section 51-7-11 
of the Money Management Act requires that the remaining term to maturity of investments may 
not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested. The Act further limits the 
remaining term to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, fixed 
rate negotiable deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligations to 270 days – 15 months or less. The 
Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all investments in obligations of the United 
States Treasury; obligations issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises; and bonds, notes, 
and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State to five years. In addition, 
variable rate negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not have a remaining term to 
final maturity exceeding three years. 
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Note 2 – Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

B. Restricted Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the County’s investments had the following maturities: 

Investment Type - Debt Securities 12/31/2020 Less than 1 1-5 6 or more

Money Market Mutual Funds 3,837,439$         3,837,439$         -$                  -$                  
U.S. Agencies 6,859,705           2,132,898           4,726,807           -                    
Corporate Bonds 16,079,439         4,117,975           11,961,464         -                    
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 67,765,820         67,765,820         -                    -                    
        Total Investments 94,542,403$    77,854,132$    16,688,271$    -$                 

Investment Maturities (in years)

 

Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The County’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the 
State’s Money Management Act, as previously discussed.  
 
As of December 31, 2020, the County’s investments had the following quality ratings: 
 

Investment Type - Debt Securities 12/31/2020 A- or better BBB+ Unrated

Money Market Mutual Funds 3,837,439$         -$                  -$                  3,837,439$         
U.S. Agencies 6,859,705           6,859,705           -                    -                    
Corporate Bonds 16,079,439         14,681,560         1,397,879           -                    
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 67,765,820         -                    -                    67,765,820         
        Total Investments 94,542,403$    21,541,265$    1,397,879$      71,603,259$    

Quality Ratings

 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s 
investment in a single issuer. The County’s policy for reducing this risk of loss is to comply with 
the Rules of the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council limits 
investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate obligations to five to ten percent 
depending upon the total dollar amount held in the portfolio.   
 
At December 31, 2020, the County held more than five percent of total investments in securities 
of Corporate Bonds ($16,079,439), U.S. Agencies ($7,121,241) and Utah Public Treasurer’s 
Investment Fund ($67,765,820) which represent 17, 8, and 71 percent, respectively of the 
County’s total investments. 
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Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counter party, 
the County will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party. The County complies with the custody requirements of the 
Utah Money Management Act and Rules of the Money Management Council. All investment 
securities are required to be held by the public treasurer, in safekeeping by a bank or trust 
company, or in a book-entry-only record maintained by a securities depository, in the Federal 
Book Entry system or in the book-entry records of the issuer of the security in the name of the 
public entity. All investment securities are held in a qualified depository certified by the 
Commissioner of Financial Institutions as adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management 
Council or in the book entry records of the issuer of the security. 
 
The County’s investments at December 31, 2020 were held by the County or in the County’s 
name by the County’s custodial banks, trust companies or agent with qualified depositories 
totaling $94,542. Of this amount $67,766, were held by the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment 
Fund where the underlying securities were uninsured. 

Note 3 – Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity related to the primary government for the year ended December 31, 2020 
was as follows: 

Beginning Disposals/ Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance

Governmental Activites:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 14,678,886$        470,000$             -$                         15,148,886$        
Rights of way 3,050,400            -                           -                           3,050,400            
Water rights 280,995               1,785                   -                           282,780               
Construction-in-progress 72,849                 -                           (72,849)                -                           

Total assets not being depreciated 18,083,130        471,785             (72,849)              18,482,066        

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 107,450,398        -                           (553,781)              106,896,617        
Improvements other than buidings 34,901,874          57,945                 -                           34,959,819          
Machinery and equipment 21,883,969          1,798,776            (1,025,025)           22,657,720          
Infrastructure (Bridges) 7,060,755            2,520,638            -                           9,581,393            
Infrastrure (Roads) 238,256,718        -                           -                           238,256,718        

Total assets being depreciated 409,553,714     4,377,359          (1,578,806)         412,352,267     

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (25,657,229)         (2,734,806)           70,376                 (28,321,659)         
Improvements other than buidings (8,053,788)           (1,837,195)           -                           (9,890,983)           
Machinery and equipment (17,508,842)         (1,366,637)           769,700               (18,105,779)         
Infrastructure (Bridges) (6,220,789)           (174,738)              -                           (6,395,527)           
Infrastrure (Roads) -                           (5,956,418)           -                           (5,956,418)           

Total accumulated depreciation (57,440,648)      (12,069,794)      840,076             (68,670,366)      

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 352,113,066     343,681,901     

Governmental activities
capital assets, net 370,196,196$   362,163,967$   
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Note 3 – Capital Assets (Continued) 

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 6,315,656$          -$                         -$                         6,315,656$          
Artifacts and other collections 35,405                 -                       -                       35,405                 

Total assets not being depreciated 6,351,061          -                           -                           6,351,061          

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 5,074,258            -                       -                       5,074,258            
Improvements other than buildings 1,424,494            -                       -                       1,424,494            
Machinery and equipment 2,349,442            207,138               -                       2,556,580            

Total assets being depreciated 8,848,194          207,138             -                      9,055,332          

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (3,198,719)           (140,391)              -                       (3,339,110)           
Improvements other than buildings (594,250)              (60,774)                -                       (655,024)              
Machinery and equipment (2,229,112)           (36,299)                -                       (2,265,411)           

Total accumulated depreciation (6,022,081)         (237,464)            -                      (6,259,545)         

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 2,826,113          2,795,787          

Business-type activities
capital assets, net 9,177,174$        9,146,848$        

 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, depreciation expense was charged to the following activities in 
the Statement of Activities: 

Governmental Activites:
General government 887,302$             
Public safety 1,748,567            
Public health 540,273               
Highways and public improvements 6,641,481            
Parks and recreation 2,232,688            
Conservation and economic development 19,483                 

12,069,794$     
Business-type activities:

Western Park 213,665$             
Landfill 2,925                   
Telecom 20,874                 

237,464               
12,307,258$     
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Note 4 – Capital Lease Receivable from Component Units 

The County has two capital lease receivables in the Uintah County Municipal Building Authority 
Fund (MBA). These receivables were generated from the MBA issuing Lease Revenue Bonds 
and using the proceeds to construction two buildings, one for Northeastern Counseling Center and 
the other for Uintah Recreation Special Service District. After the construction of these buildings 
was completed, the County sold the buildings to Northeastern Counseling Center and Uintah 
Recreation District respectively through the means of capital leases. Currently, the County has a 
note receivable with Northeastern Counseling Center in the amount of $32,500 and is to receive a 
final annual payment of $32,500 in the year 2021. The County also has a note receivable with 
Uintah Recreation District for the purchase of the recreation center in the amount of $2,839,000 
with annual payments in the amount of $167,000. The final payment from Uintah Recreation 
District will be received in 2037. 

Note 5 – Long-Term Debt 

The following table summarized the changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 
2020: 

Balance Due within
12/31/2019 Additions Reductions Ending Balance one year

Primary Government
Governmental Activities:

General obligation bonds:
2015 Series Refunding Bonds 28,445,000$        -$                     1,380,000$          27,065,000$        1,450,000$          
Unamortized bond premium 2,541,648            -                       169,443               2,372,205            169,443               

Total general obligation bonds 30,986,648        -                      1,549,443          29,437,205        1,619,443          

Reveue bonds:
2000D Revenue Bonds - Public health 65,000                 -                       32,500                 32,500                 32,500                 
2005 Revenue Bonds - Parks 270,000               -                       45,000                 225,000               45,000                 
2006A Revenue Bonds - Recreation 3,006,000            -                       167,000               2,839,000            167,000               
2007C Revenue Bonds - Landfill 283,000               -                       32,000                 251,000               32,000                 
2007D Revenue Bonds - Public health 1,376,000            -                       77,000                 1,299,000            77,000                 
2008B Revenue Bonds - Public safety 6,481,000            -                       6,481,000            -                       -                       
2011A Rvenue Bonds - Airport 406,765               -                       36,000                 370,765               36,000                 
2011B Revenue Bonds - Airport 346,587               -                       57,000                 289,587               57,000                 
2011C Revenue Bonds - Library 2,485,000            -                       2,485,000            -                       -                       
2014 Revenue Bonds - Parks 3,750,000            -                       150,000               3,600,000            150,000               

Total revenue bonds 18,469,352        -                      9,562,500          8,906,852          596,500             
Total bonds 49,456,000        -                      11,111,943        38,344,057        2,215,943          

Tax refund liability (Note 7) 415,602               -                       103,901               311,701               103,901               
Termination benefits (Note 8) 1,068,025            34,673                 -                       1,102,698            -                       
Net pension liability 9,044,960            -                       3,806,990            5,237,970            -                       
Compensated absences 1,967,714            -                       106,114               1,861,600            -                       

Total 61,952,301$     34,673$             15,128,948$     46,858,026$     2,319,844$        

Business-Type Activities:
Closure liability (Note 6) 27,558$               -$                     26,747$               811$                    -$                     
Net pension liability 485,151               -                       205,917               279,234               -                       
Compensated absences 231,700               -                       80,867                 150,833               -                       

Total Business-type Long-Term Debt 744,409$           -$                    313,531$           430,878$           -$                    
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Note 5 – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Debt service requirements as of December 31, 2020were as follows: 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 2,215,943$          1,019,138$          3,235,081$          
2022 2,253,443            946,638               3,200,081            
2023 2,328,443            870,638               3,199,081            
2024 2,408,443            790,888               3,199,331            
2025 2,493,443            707,138               3,200,581            

2026-2030 12,997,802          2,431,090            15,428,892          
2031-2035 11,818,540          709,002               12,527,542          
2036-2040 1,228,000            -                       1,228,000            
2041-2045 600,000               -                       600,000               

38,344,057$     7,474,532$        45,818,589$     

 

A. General Obligations Bonds 
 
A description of the General Obligation Bonds payable at December 31, 2020 is as follows: 
 
2015 Series Refunding Bond 
 
On December 31, 2015, Uintah County issued $33,385,000 of General Obligation, Series 2015 
Refunding Bonds. The bonds are to be used for the advance refunding of Taxable Lease Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2008A. In connection with this advance refunding, the County deposited the net 
proceeds along with other resources in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service of 
the refunded portion of the bonds. As a result, the refunded portion of those bonds is considered 
defeased and the County has removed the liability from its accounts. The Taxable Lease Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2008A, were originally issued to help in the construction and furnishing of a new 
Public Safety Facility. Principal debt payments on G.O. Bonds, Series 2015, began in December 
of 2016 with principal payments ranging from $1,185,000 to $2,390,000 annually. The bonds 
carry an interest rate ranging from 2.25% to 5.0%.  Interest and principal payments began on 
December 15, 2016, and continue until December 15, 2034, when both principal and interest 
payments are made. The repayment schedule is as follows: 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 1,450,000$          1,019,138$          2,469,138$          
2022 1,520,000            946,638               2,466,638            
2023 1,595,000            870,638               2,465,638            
2024 1,675,000            790,888               2,465,888            
2025 1,760,000            707,138               2,467,138            

2026-2030 9,905,000            2,431,090            12,336,090          
2031-2034 9,160,000            709,002               9,869,002            

27,065,000$     7,474,532$        34,539,532$     
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Note 5 – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

A. General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Unamortized Bond Premium – 2015 Series Refunding Bond 

On December 15, 2015, Uintah County issued $33,385,000 of General Obligation refunding 
Bonds at a premium of $3,219,420. This premium is to be amortized over the life of the new 
bonds which is 19 years. Each year $169,443 will be amortized and reported as interest income.   

Deferred Outflows – Refunding Bonds 

Also, associated with the refunding bonds of 2015, deferred outflows of resources was created, 
which was the difference between the reacquisition price (amount placed in escrow to pay 
principal on old debt and any call premium) and the net carrying amount (amount due at 
maturity adjusted for any premium or discount relating to the old debt). The amount of the 
deferred outflows of resources created was $4,500,942. This amount will be amortized over the 
life of the new debt which is nineteen years. Each year’s amortization will be $236,892. 

B. Revenue Bonds 
 
A description of the Revenue Bonds payable at December 31, 2020 is as follows: 
 
2000D Revenue Bonds – Public Health 
 
On October 13, 2000, the Municipal Building Authority of Uintah County issued Lease Revenue 
Bond Series 2000D in the principal amount of $650,000 together with a zero percent rate of 
interest. Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2000D, were issued for the purpose of acquisition of land 
and the construction of a new approximately 7,000 square foot building to house the Vernal 
offices of the Northeastern Counseling Center and related improvements. Repayment of principal 
begins September 1, 2002. Total repayment will be completed in 2021. 
 
2005 Revenue Bonds – Parks 
 
On October 25, 2005, Uintah County Municipal Building Authority issued Taxable Lease 
Revenue Bonds Series 2005 in the principal amount of $900,000 together with interest at the rate 
of zero percent. The principal becomes payable beginning January 1, 2007 and matures January 
1, 2025. The purpose for issuing the bonds was to construct Phase 4 at the Western Park facilities. 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 45,000$               -$                     45,000$               
2022 45,000                 -                       45,000                 
2023 45,000                 -                       45,000                 
2024 45,000                 -                       45,000                 
2025 45,000                 -                       45,000                 

225,000$           -$                    225,000$           
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Note 5 – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

B. Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 
2006A Revenue Bonds – Recreation 
 
On December 9, 2006, the Municipal Building Authority of Uintah County issued Taxable Lease 
Revenue Bond Series 2006A in the principal amount of $5,000,000 together with a zero percent 
rate of interest. Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, were issued for the purpose of constructing 
a new recreation center located in Vernal, Utah. The County originally owned approximately 37 
percent of the new recreation center building which was later contributed to the Recreation 
District. Repayment of principal begins October 1, 2008 and ending October 1, 2037. The 
principal payments equal $167,000 per annum. The repayment schedule is as follows: 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 167,000$             -$                     167,000$             
2022 167,000               -                       167,000               
2023 167,000               -                       167,000               
2024 167,000               -                       167,000               
2025 167,000               -                       167,000               

2026-2030 835,000               -                       835,000               
2031-2034 835,000               -                       835,000               
2036-2037 334,000               -                       334,000               

2,839,000$        -$                    2,839,000$        

 
2007C Revenue Bonds – Landfill 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Uintah County Municipal Building Authority 
issued Taxable Lease Revenue Bond, Series 2007C. The principal amount of the original issue 
was $635,000. The bonds are to be used to help in the construction of a building for the Landfill. 
Principal repayments on the bonds begin April 1, 2009, and mature April 1, 2028 with payments 
ranging from $27,000 to $32,000 annually and carry zero percent interest. The repayment 
schedule is as follows: 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 32,000$               -$                     32,000$               
2022 32,000                 -                       32,000                 
2023 32,000                 -                       32,000                 
2024 32,000                 -                       32,000                 
2025 32,000                 -                       32,000                 

2026-2028 91,000                 -                       91,000                 

251,000$           -$                    251,000$           
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Note 5 – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

B. Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 
2007D Revenue Bonds – Public Health 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Uintah County Municipal Building Authority 
issued Taxable Lease Revenue Bond, Series 2007D. The principal amount of the original issue 
was $2,300,000. The bonds are to be used to help fund the construction of a new building to be 
leased to Tri-County Health District. Principal repayments on the bonds begin October 1, 2008 
and mature October 1, 2037 with payments ranging from $67,000 to $77,000 annually and carry 
zero percent interest. The repayment schedule is as follows: 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 77,000$               -$                     77,000$               
2022 77,000                 -                       77,000                 
2023 77,000                 -                       77,000                 
2024 77,000                 -                       77,000                 
2025 77,000                 -                       77,000                 

2026-2030 385,000               -                       385,000               
2031-2034 385,000               -                       385,000               
2036-2037 144,000               -                       144,000               

1,299,000$        -$                    1,299,000$        

 
2011A Revenue Bonds – Airport 
 
On December 21, 2011, the Uintah County Municipal Building Authority issued $711,000 of 
Series 2011A Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds. The bonds are to be used for the construction of a 
new fence around the Uintah County Airport. Principal debt payments begin October 1, 2012 and 
mature on October 1, 2031. The principal payment amounts ranging from $27,000 to $36,000 
annually. The bonds carry an interest rate of zero percent interest. The repayment schedule is as 
follows: 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 36,000$               -$                     36,000$               
2022 36,000                 -                       36,000                 
2023 36,000                 -                       36,000                 
2024 36,000                 -                       36,000                 
2025 36,000                 -                       36,000                 

2026-2030 180,000               -                       180,000               
2031 10,765                 -                       10,765                 

370,765$           -$                    370,765$           
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Note 5 – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

B. Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
 
2011B Revenue Bonds – Airport 
 
On December 21, 2011, the Uintah County Municipal Building Authority issued $850,000 of 
Series 2011B Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds for the purpose of purchasing a snowplow to be 
used at the Uintah County airport. Principal repayments on the bonds begin October 1, 2012, and 
mature October 1, 2026 with payments ranging from $52,000 to $57,000 annually and carry zero 
percent interest. The new snowplow is collateral for these bonds. The repayment schedule is as 
follows: 

 
Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 57,000$               -$                     57,000$               
2022 57,000                 -                       57,000                 
2023 57,000                 -                       57,000                 
2024 57,000                 -                       57,000                 
2025 57,000                 -                       57,000                 
2026 4,587                   -                       4,587                   

289,587$           -$                    289,587$           

 
2014 Revenue Bonds – Parks 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Uintah County Municipal Building Authority issued 
$4,500,000 of Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. The bonds were issued to be used for the 
architectural design, landscaping and remodeling of the Western Park facility including the 
construction of a shop, exhibit hall, convention center and parking lot. The bond is a zero percent 
interest bond. The first principal payment will be made on January 1, 2016. Principal payments 
will continue each January 1, until 2044 at which time, the bonds will be paid in full. 
 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 150,000$             -$                     150,000$             
2022 150,000               -                       150,000               
2023 150,000               -                       150,000               
2024 150,000               -                       150,000               
2025 150,000               -                       150,000               

2026-2030 750,000               -                       750,000               
2031-2034 750,000               -                       750,000               
2036-2040 750,000               -                       750,000               
2041-2045 600,000               -                       600,000               

3,600,000$        -$                    3,600,000$        
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B. Annual Debt Service Requirements 
 
Annual debt service requirement to maturity for both general obligation and revenue bonds are as 
follows: 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total

2021 2,046,500$          1,019,138$          3,065,638$          
2022 2,084,000            946,638               3,030,638            
2023 2,159,000            870,638               3,029,638            
2024 2,239,000            790,888               3,029,888            
2025 2,008,413            707,138               2,715,551            

2026-2030 12,150,587          2,431,090            14,581,677          
2031-2034 10,915,765          709,002               11,624,767          
2036-2040 1,768,587            -                       1,768,587            
2041-2045 600,000               -                       600,000               

35,971,852$     7,474,532$        43,446,384$     

 

Note 6 – Municipal Solid Waste Landfill 

Uintah County has a landfill that operates within the County. The County has filed with the 
State for operating permits for the landfill and has received a written approval. The County has 
received the landfill permit to stay in operation effective June 15, 2015 and expires June 15, 
2025. On June 15, 2015, Uintah County received a permit renewal from the State of Utah to 
continue the operation of the Uintah Landfill. The State has extended the permit for a period of 
ten year with the Closure Cost Revision date of June 15, 2020. The State of Utah is the source 
of regulations for the permitting and operation of landfills. 

Uintah County has obtained information necessary to determine the nature and source of landfill 
closure and post-closure care requirements. An amount of liability for closure and post-closure 
care costs, estimated total current cost of closure and post-closure care remaining to be a 
recognized, percentage of landfill capacity used to date and the nature of the estimates and the 
potential for changes due to inflation or deflation, technology, or applicable laws or regulations 
has been calculated by the County and the engineers. At December 31, 2020, closure and post-
closure costs are estimated at $362,678 for the Uintah County Municipal Landfill and $50,147 
for the Lapoint Landfill. As of December 31, 2020, $27,558 has been accrued in connection 
with the cumulative landfill use to date. The County has set aside an amount of $239,347 to be 
put into an account held by the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Pool. Each year the County 
will contribute an additional $6,500 to this fund. The accumulated amount will be used for the 
above costs. Financial assurance is made by Uintah County. Any short fall will be paid by the 
County. The County estimates the remaining current Uintah County and Lapoint landfills 
capacity life to be 10 years plus. The percentage of capacity used is estimated at .2235 percent 
and .009 percent, respectively. 
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Note 7 – Tax Refund Liability 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, Anadarko Uintah Midstream, L.L.C. appealed the 
assessed valuation on property in Uintah County to the State of Utah under appeal number 16-
925. The original assessed value for Anadarko’s property was $379,505,548 and was later 
revised to $126,442,114. This resulted in a tax refund to Anadarko Uintah Midstream, L.L.C of 
$2,811,029. Uintah County’s portion to be refunded to Anadarko amounted to $727,304. The 
County entered into an agreement with Anadarko to repay the tax refund over seven years 
without being charged interest on the outstanding balance due. The annual payment to 
Anadarko from Uintah County will be $103,901. The annual repayment amount will be 
allocated back to the individual funds of Uintah County that have charged a certified tax rate 
according to their proportionate share of the overall certified tax rate. As of December 31, 2020, 
the County owed $311,701 to Anadarko. 

Note 8 – Termination Benefits 

The County pays termination benefits to employees of the County that qualify under their 
policy. The policy states that the County will pay up to 90 percent of an employee’s health 
insurance premium after retirement if they qualify for a pension through the Utah State 
Retirement System and have worked 20 years for the County. If employees have worked less 
than 20 years, the County will pay five percent per year as a percentage of the 90 percent 
benefit. Therefore, if an employee had worked for 10 years and qualified for a pension through 
the Utah State Retirement System, the County would pay 50 percent of the 90 percent health 
insurance benefit. This benefit is available to employees only until they qualify for Medicare. 
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the County paid $34,673 of termination benefits. At 
December 31, 2020, the County had 10 employees that qualified for this benefit. The County 
has elected to pay termination benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

The present value of expected future benefit payments is $1,102,698. To determine this benefit 
the County has discounted expected future benefits at a discount rate of 1.086 percent and used 
healthcare cost trend rate of 4.845 percent. 

Note 9 – Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Tri-County Health Department, a component unit of Uintah County, offers certain other post-
employment benefits to its employees. During 2008, the District hired a firm to help in 
calculating the District’s annual required contribution. The District’s fiscal year end is June 30, 
and the annual required contribution for the District is due June 30, 2009. Scenic Valley 
Associates used the Alternative Measurement Method in their calculation, and it was 
determined that Tri-County Health Department has an annual required contribution of $29,089. 
Some of the key results of the analysis is normal costs equaled $14,831 with amortization 
payment of $14,258. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability was calculated to be $246,529. 
During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Tri-County Health Department fully funded 
their obligation for retirement. Since the 2008 calculation of the District's actuarial pension 
liability and the District fully funding this liability, there has not been any additional calculation 
on what current and future pension liability the District may have accrued. The District has 
changed its policy regarding how employees qualify for other post-employment benefits. The 
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previous Health Director has retired and was one of the main individuals at the District which 
was accumulating these benefits. It is the understanding of District management that, since the 
original liability was $246,529 for all benefits accrued up until 2008, any benefits that have 
accrued since that time would not be material to the financial statements. At December 31, 
2020, there were eight employees that still qualified for these benefits and only four employees 
that have accumulated the major benefit. The fair market value of funds in trust to pay these 
benefits at December 31, 2020 was $261,536. 

Note 10 – Restrictions: Fund Balance & Net Position 

The County has restricted the following fund balances of governmental funds and net position 
for proprietary funds: 

Governmental Funds 

$1,684,685 has been restricted through a certified rate to be used in the Assessing and 
Collecting Fund to help in meeting the costs associated with the assessing and collecting 
of property taxes in the County. 

$1,895,364 has been restricted in the Flood Control Funds to be used for the purpose of 
helping offset the costs of flooding in the County.   

$2,554,798 has been restricted in the Library Fund for the purpose of covering the 
operation and maintenance of the Library. 

$2,204,270 has been restricted in the Tri-County Health District Fund by state and federal 
governments along with contribution from other local governments for the purpose of 
providing basic public health services for residents within the District’s boundaries.   

$487,821 has been restricted through collection of transient room tax to be used to help 
promote economic development and tourism. 

$479,545 has been restricted through the collection of sales tax to be used for the 
promotion of tourism and food services in the County. 

$10,835,492 has been restricted in the “B” Road Fund for the purpose of maintaining, 
improving, repairing or replacement of “B” roads in Uintah County. 

$8,018,608 has been restricted in the Municipal Building Authority Fund for the purpose 
of paying principal and interest on general long-term debt. Part of these funds are to be 
used for the maintenance of current facilities. 

$1,191,275 has been restricted in the Tort Liability Fund for the purpose of meeting the 
costs of providing insurance and meeting claims for liability issues for the County.   

$1,323,900 has been restricted in the Debt Service Fund for the purpose of meeting the 
payment requirement of principal and interest on General Obligation debt. 

$8,116,614 has been restricted in the Tax Stability Fund for the purpose of providing 
funding for the County during hard economic times. 
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Note 10 – Restrictions: Fund Balance & Net Position (Continued) 

$390,127 has been restricted in the Cemetery Board Funds for the purpose of providing 
maintenance and care for the local cemeteries. 

Proprietary Funds 

$20,456,995 has been restricted due to a special sales tax to be used for the Uintah Care 
Center for current and future operation of the facility. 

$239,347 has been restricted in the Landfill Fund as a post-closure reserve fund to cover 
costs to close the landfill and maintain the landfill after closure.   

The County has also reported various restrictions of net position in the Government-wide 
financial statements. The net position restrictions are the comprised of the same amounts nature 
as those that have been restricted in the fund financial statements. 

Note 11 – Pension Plans 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan description: Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah 
Retirement Systems. The Utah Retirement Systems are comprised of the following Pension 
Trust Funds: 

Defined Benefit Plans 

 Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a 
multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system. 

 Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System) is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer public employee retirement system; 

 Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees 
System) is a multiple employer cost sharing public employee retirement system; 

 Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public 
Safety and Firefighters System) is a multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee 
retirement system. 

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees 
beginning on or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah 
Retirement Systems, are members of the Tier 2 Retirement System. 

The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections 
of Title 49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems’ defined benefit plans 
are amended statutorily by the State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 
49 provides for the administration of the Systems under the direction of the Utah State 
Retirement Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary 
funds defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of 
the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the 
benefit terms.
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Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued) 

General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 

URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement 
Systems, 560 E. 200 S, Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org. 

Summary of Benefits by System 

URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as follows: 

Years of Service Required 
System Final Average and/or Age Eligible for Benefit Percent 

Salary Benefit per Year of Service COLA**
Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 years any age

25 years any age*
20 years age 60* 2.0% per year all years Up to 4%
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

Public Safety System Highest 3 years 20 years any age 2.5% per year up to 20 years
10 years age 60 2.0% per year over 20 years
4 years age 65

Tier 2 Public Employees Highest 5 years 35 years any age
System 20 years any age 60* 1.50% per year all years Up to 2.5%  

10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

Tier 2 Public Safety Highest 5 years 25 years any age
and Firefighter System 20 years any age 60* Up to 2.5%

10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

Up to 2.5% to 4% 
depending on the 

employer

1.50% per year to June 2020 
2.00% per year July 2020 to 

present

 

*Actuarial reductions are applied. 

** All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit 
expect for Judges, which is compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases not met may be carried forward to 
subsequent years.   

Contribution Rate Summary 

As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to 
contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the 
Utah State Retirement Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when 
combined with employee contributions (where applicable), is expected to finance the costs of 
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates as of December 31, 2020 are as follows: 
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Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued) 

Employer
Employee Employer 401(k)

Contributory System:
11-Local Governmental Division Tier 1 6.00                   14.46                    N/A
111-Local Governmental Division Tier 2 N/A 15.80                    0.89                 

Noncontributory System
15-Local Government Division Tier 1 N/A 18.47                    N/A

Public Safety Retirement System
       Contributory

122- Tier 2 DB Hybrid Public Safety 2.27                   25.83                    N/A

       No 43- Other Division A Noncontributory Tier 1 N/A 34.04                    N/A

Tier 2 DC Only
211- Local Government N/A 6.69                      10.00               
222- Public Safety N/A 11.83                    14.00               

 
***Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability on the Tier 1 
plans. 

For fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, the employer and employee contributions to the 
Systems were as follows:   

Employer Employee
System Contributions Contributions
      Noncontributory System 1,047,633$        N/A
      Public Safety System 634,312             -                           
      Tier 2 Public Employees System 578,279             -                           
      Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 443,892             19,098                  
      Tier 2 DC Only System 58,554               N/A
      Tier 2 DC Public Safety and Firefighter System 9,672                 N/A
           Total 2,772,342$      $19,098

 

Contribution Rate Summary (Continued) 

Contributions reported are the URS Board-approved required contributions by System. 
Contributions in the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 
System. 

Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
Relating to Pensions 

 

 



Uintah County 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 
 
 

57 
 

Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued) 

At December 31, 2020, we reported a net pension asset of $0 and a net pension liability of 
$5,517,204. 

Net Pension Net Pension Proportionate Proportionate Share Change
Asset Liability Share December 31, 2018 (Decrease)

Noncontributory System -$                 2,942,549$      0.7807513% 0.7679920% 0.0127593%
Contributory System -                   -                  0% 0% 0%
Public Safety System -                   2,428,643        1.5125909% 1.4548833% 0.0577076%
Firefightewr System -                   -                  0% 0% 0%
Judges Retirement System -                   -                  0% 0% 0%
Governors & Legislators Plan -                   -                  0% 0% 0%
Tier 2 Public Employees System -                   56,112             0.2494871% 0.2534581% -0.0039710%
Tier 2 Public Safety and Fire Fighter System -                   89,900             0.9557272% 0.9366188% 0.0191084%
Total Net Pension Asset / Liability -$                5,517,204$   

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2019

 

The net pension asset and liability were measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2020 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. 
The proportion of the net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual 
contributions to the Systems during the plan year over the total of all employer contributions to 
the System during the plan year.   

For the year ended December 31, 2020, we recognized pension expense of $3,718,495. 

Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
Relating to Pensions (Continued) 

At December 31, 2020, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources relating to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 352,472$        113,412$        

Changes in assumptions 439,828          2,424              

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments -                  2,382,606       

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and 
proporionate share of contributions 383,467          239,141          

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,772,342       -                  

Total 3,948,109$  2,737,583$  
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Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued) 

$2,772,342 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from 
contributions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of 
December 31, 2019.   

These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming 
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Deferred Outflows
Year Ended December 31, (inflows) of Resources

2020 (270,579)$                       
2021 (541,798)                         
2022 59,989                             
2023 (896,692)                         
2024 10,114                             

Thereafter 77,151                              

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation:    2.50 percent 

Salary Increases:    3.25 – 9.75 percent, average, including inflation 

Investment Rate of Return:  6.95 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation 

Mortality rates were developed from actual experience and mortality tables based on gender, 
occupation and age as appropriate, with adjustments for future improvement in mortality based on 
Scale AA, a model developed by the Society of Actuaries. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2019, valuation was based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the five year period ending December 31, 2016. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method, in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class and is applied consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
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Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued) 

Real Return Long-Term expected
Target Asset Arithmetic portfolio real

Asset Class Allocation Basis rate of return
Equity securities 40% 6.15% 2.46%
Debt securities 20% 0.40% 0.08%
Real assets 15% 5.75% 0.86%
Private equity 9% 9.95% 0.90%
Absolute return 16% 2.85% 0.46%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%

Totals 100% 4.75%
Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.25%

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

 

Actual Consumptions (Continued) 

The 6.95 percent assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50 
percent, and a real return of 4.45 percent that is net of investment expense. 

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95 percent. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate, assumed that employee contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate, and that contributions from all participating 
employers will be made at contractually required rates that are actuarially determined and 
certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current, active, and 
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate. The discount rate remained 
unchanged at 6.95 percent. 

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the 
discount rate: The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 6.95 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 
lower (5.95 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (7.95 percent) than the current rate: 

1%  Decrease Discount Rate 1%  Increase
System (5.95% ) (6.95% ) (7.95% )
      Noncontributory System 9,190,606$        2,942,549$           (2,268,265)$     
      Public Safety System 6,291,127          2,428,643             (710,370)          
      Tier 2 Public Employees System 483,874             56,112                  (274,471)          
      Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 317,582             89,900                  (79,117)            
           Total 16,283,189$   5,517,204$        (3,332,223)$  

 



Uintah County 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

60 
 

Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued) 

Defined Contribution Savings Plan 

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and are 
generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems but may also be used as a 
primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement savings programs authorized under 
sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal Revenue Code. Detailed information regarding plan provisions is 
available in the separately issued URS financial report. 

Uintah County participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with Utah Retirement Systems: 

 401(k) Plan 
 457 (b) Plan 
 Roth IRA Plan 

Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for fiscal year 
ended December 31st were as follows: 

2020 2019 2018 2017
401(k) Plan

Employer Contributions 867,735$     842,806$     817,284$     828,845$    
Employee Contributions 755,362$     497,303$     539,704$     468,705$    

457 Plan
Employer Contributions -$            -$            -$            -$           
Employee Contributions 512,093$     158,564$     173,543$     146,065$    

Roth IRA Plan
Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A N/A
Employee Contributions 105,555$     94,225$       82,527$       61,940$      
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Note 12 – Interfund Activity 

Transfers to and from other funds during the year ended December 31, 2020 were as follows: 

Transfers from Transfers to Net Transfers
Other Funds Other Funds In (Out)

Governmental Funds:
General fund 120,956$             (1,097,204)$         (976,248)$            
Cemetery association 460,000               -                       460,000               
Drug court 70,000                 -                       70,000                 
Transient room tax 400,000               -                       400,000               
Food service tax -                       (400,000)              (400,000)              
Tax stability trust -                       (120,956)              (120,956)              

1,050,956            (1,618,160)           (567,204)              

Enterprise Funds:
Western Park 544,700               -                       544,700               
Tele-comm 22,504                 -                       22,504                 

567,204               -                       567,204               
1,618,160$        (1,618,160)$      -$                    

 

A transfer from the Food Service Tax Fund in the amount of $400,000 was made to the Transient Room Tax Fund 
to help with cost associated with tourism. The General Fund made transfers to the Drug Court Fund in the amount 
of $70,000, to help cover costs of drug rehab and the operation of the program.  

Note 13 – Segment Information for Enterprise Funds 

The County maintains enterprise funds, which provide sanitation services, telecommunication, special activities, 
and nursing home services. Segment information for the year December 31, 2020 is as follows: 

Care Center Western Park Landfill Telecommunicaitons
Operating Revenues:

Charges for sales and services -$                    170,731$           772,591$           181,836$               
Depreciation expense -                      213,666            2,924                20,873                  
Operating income (loss) -                      (1,377,965)         22,508              (1,788)                   
Tax revenues 315                     718,105            -                   -                       
Operating transfes in (out) -                      544,700            -                   22,504                  
Change in Net Position (195,832)              (83,713)             44,383              23,203                  

Property, plant and equipmnt:
Additions -                      63,134              121,500            22,504                  

Current assets 20,456,995           1,155,468          1,973,823          312,509                
Current liabilities -                      96,226              138,598            36,880                  
Net working capital 20,456,995           1,059,242          1,835,225          275,629                
Total assets 20,456,995           10,002,881        2,171,132          414,637                
Total net position 20,456,995$       9,676,420$      1,891,498$      377,757$             
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Note 14 – Contingent Liabilities  

Uintah County has several pending lawsuits and notice of claims filed by different individuals. These cases are 
currently pending, and the outcome is undeterminable at this time. The County has taken the position to 
vigorously contest these suits. 

Note 15 – Property Tax Calendar 

The County adopts, by June 22, the proposed tax rates as part of its budget for the current year, which began 
January 1. If the proposed rates exceed a certified tax rate, special public hearings must be held before the final 
rate is adopted. The final tax rate is assessed by the county assessor on property in the County on the prior 
January 1. The taxes are payable to the county treasurer by the end of November and are remitted to the County 
by the county treasurer as collected. 

Note 16 – Risk Management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. In 1992, the County joined together with other 
counties in the State to form the Utah Association of Counties (UAC), a public entity risk pool currently operating 
as a common risk management and insurance program for member Counties. The County pays an annual 
premium to UAC for its general insurance coverage. The Agreement for Formation of the UAC provides that 
UAC will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies. 

The County continues to carry commercial insurance for workers compensation. Settled claims resulting from 
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past two years. 

 Note 17 – Stabilization Funds 

Uintah County has passed ordinance 12-12-89-3, which has allowed the County to establish a Tax Stability Trust 
Fund, for the purpose of preserving funds during years with favorable tax revenues for use during years with less 
favorable tax revenues. Under the ordinance the County was allowed to transfer $2,000,000 into the Tax Stability 
Trust Fund from the County's General Fund. Additions to the principal in this fund will be through the authority 
of the ordinance or by the Fund retaining the interest earning each year. The stabilization funds can be used if the 
County is faced with economic hardship and a substantial reduction in property tax revenues by holding a public 
hearing and with the vote of the County Commissioners to approve the use of these funds. During the year ended 
December 31, 2020, the County assessed a certified rate in this fund in an effort to generate additional funds 
because of the reduction of oil and gas price in the last couple of years. At the end of December 31, 2020, the 
County had cash of $8,112,831 in their Tax Stability Trust Fund.  
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Note 18 – Prior Period Adjustments 

The County has elected to make the following prior period adjustments: 

Governmental Activities 

The Cemetery Board Funds were moved from being grouped with the Custodial Funds which were included in the 
Permanent Funds which is now included with the Governmental Activities.  Because Custodial fund balances are 
not included with the Governmental Activities, the Cemetery Board’s prior period fund balance of $416,379 had 
to be included as a prior period adjustment. 

Note 19 – Subsequent Events 

In preparing these financial statements, Uintah County has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through the date of the audit report, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. On March 22, 2021, Uintah County voted to approve the creation of a new special service 
district with the intent to combine Uintah Recreation District, Uintah Transportation Special Service District, and 
the Uintah Impact Mitigation Special Service District into one special service district. With the approval of the 
County commissioners, the County is now waiting on approval from the State of Utah Lt. Governor’s Office.
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Variance
with Final

Budget
Original Final Actual Over(Under)

Revenues

Taxes 12,327,600$             11,182,600$             10,640,067$             (542,533)$                 
Assessing and collecting 2,984,900                 2,984,900                 -                            (2,984,900)                
Charges for services 4,814,200                 4,834,200                 4,292,135                 (542,065)                   
Fines and forfeitures 244,200                    244,200                    329,467                    85,267                      
Highways and public improvements 3,963,500                 3,963,500                 -                            (3,963,500)                
Intergovernmental revenues 3,005,800                 8,231,223                 6,520,716                 (1,710,507)                
Licenses and permits 105,500                    105,500                    102,660                    (2,840)                       
Interest income 100,000                    100,000                    99,078                      (922)                          
Transfers in -                            11,000                      120,956                    109,956                    
Miscellaneous 491,000 732,400 190,070                    (542,330)                   

Total Revenues 28,036,700            32,389,523            22,295,149            (10,094,374)           

Expenditures
Current:
   General government 9,954,800                 10,696,300               7,160,524                 (3,535,776)                
   Public safety 9,474,600                 9,100,245                 7,580,360                 (1,519,885)                
   Public health 338,000                    552,800                    548,080                    (4,720)                       
   Highways and public improvements 4,131,500                 3,691,900                 625,606                    (3,066,294)                
   Parks, recreation, and public property 862,400                    110,000                    57,733                      (52,267)                     
   Conservation and economic development 1,418,700                 6,871,578                 5,742,164                 (1,129,414)                
   Captial outlay -                            50,000                      8,733                        (41,267)                     
   Transfer out 1,856,700                 1,316,700                 1,097,204                 (219,496)                   

Total Expenditures 28,036,700            32,389,523            22,820,404            (9,569,119)             

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures -                            -                            (525,255)                   (525,255)                   

Net Change in Fund Balance (525,255)                   

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 13,030,799               
Fund Balance End of Year 12,505,544$          

Budgeted Amounts

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Uintah County 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual – Municipal Services Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

66 
The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 

 

Variance
with Final

Budget
Original Final Actual Over(Under)

Revenues

Taxes 1,504,700$            1,504,700$            1,946,495$             441,795$             
Charges for services 335,700                 528,800                 704,150                  175,350               
Intergovernmental revenues 3,264,000              3,278,900              3,287,933               9,033                   
Licenses and permits 152,000                 164,500                 245,609                  81,109                 
Interest income 25,000                   25,000                   27,648                    2,648                   
Sale of fixed assets 60,000                   60,000 65,226                    5,226                   
Miscellaneous 30,900                   116,400 85,355                    (31,045)                

Total Revenues 5,372,300            5,678,300            6,362,416             684,116             

Expenditures
Current:
   General government 943,500                 956,500                 946,149                  (10,351)                
   Public safety 4,334,500              4,627,500              4,454,985               (172,515)              
   Highways and public improvements 94,300                   94,300                   96,848                    2,548                   

Total Expenditures 5,372,300            5,678,300            5,497,982             (180,318)            

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures -                             -                             864,434                  864,434               

Net Change in Fund Balance 864,434                  

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 3,226,070               
Fund Balance End of Year 4,090,504$           

Budgeted Amounts
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The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 

 

Variance
with Final

Budget
Original Final Actual Over(Under)

Revenues
Taxes 608,500$               608,500$               1,705,414$             1,096,914$          
Intergovernmental revenues 4,048,500              4,048,500              4,023,067               (25,433)                
Interest income -                         -                         90,122                    90,122                 
Miscellaneous -                         -                         43,844                    43,844                 

Total Revenues 4,657,000            4,657,000            5,862,447             1,205,447          

Expenditures
Current:
   Highways and public improvements 4,657,000              4,657,000              3,042,252               (1,614,748)           

Total Expenditures 4,657,000            4,657,000            3,042,252             (1,614,748)        

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures -                             -                             2,820,195               2,820,195            

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,820,195               

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 8,906,073               
Fund Balance End of Year 11,726,268$        

Budgeted Amounts
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Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Plan Fiduciary

Proportionate Liability (Asset) as a Net Position as a
Proportion of the Share of the Net Covered- Percentage of its Percentage of the

Year End Net Pension Pension Liability Employee Covered-Employee Total Pension
December 31, Liability (Asset) (Asset) Payroll Payroll Liability (Asset)

Noncontributory 2015 -                        $0 $0 0.00% 0.0%
Retirement System 2016 0.2506316% $14,182 $1,898,137 74.72% 87.8%

2017 0.8826751% $56,679 $6,967,170 81.35% 87.3%
2018 0.8193346% $35,898 $6,405,346 56.04% 91.9%
2019 0.7679920% $56,553 $6,039,416 93.64% 87.0%
2020 0.7807513% $2,942,549 $6,172,099 47.68% 93.7%

Contributory 2015 15.8036918% $4,558,473 $7,326,899 62.20% 94.0%
Retirement System 2016 14.8657144% $10,448,432 $5,253,545 198.88% 85.7%

2017 0.0695969% $22,836 $16,699 136.75% 92.9%
2018 0.0000000% $0 $0 0.00% 98.2%
2019 0.0000000% $0 $9,318 0.00% 91.2%
2020 0.0000000% $0 $2,533 0.00% 0.0%

Public Safety System 2015 1.5674182% $1,971,159 $2,204,621 89.40% 90.5%
2016 1.6947110% $3,035,653 $2,428,017 125.03% 87.1%
2017 1.6468326% $3,341,878 $2,398,853 139.31% 86.5%
2018 1.4926527% $2,341,462 $2,138,980 109.47% 90.2%
2019 1.4548833% $3,742,811 $2,005,492 186.63% 84.7%
2020 1.5125909% $2,428,643 $1,971,192 123.21% 90.9%

Tier 2 Public 2015 0.3965269% ($12,018) $1,945,554 -0.60% 103.5%
Employees Retirement 2016 0.3968809% ($866) $2,564,073 -0.03% 100.2%
System 2017 0.3619962% $40,830 $2,968,659 1.36% 95.1%

2018 0.2946904% $25,982 $2,883,680 0.90% 97.4%
2019 0.2534581% $108,551 $2,961,377 3.67% 90.8%
2020 0.2494871% $56,112 $3,468,028 1.62% 96.5%

Tier 2 Public Safety 2015 1.4499515% ($21,449) $600,529 -3.60% 120.5%
and Firefighters 2016 1.4339945% ($20,951) $853,242 -2.46% 110.7%
Retirement System 2017 1.0918107% ($9,478) $902,067 -1.05% 103.6%

2018 97.0440700% ($1,129) $1,024,083 -1.10% 103.0%
2019 0.9366188% $23,468 $1,253,194 1.87% 95.6%
2020 0.9557272% $89,900 $1,575,282 5.71% 89.6%

* In accordance with paragraph 81 of GASB 68, employers will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate share of the Net Pension
Liability (Asset) in their RSI. The 10 year schedule will need to be built prospectively. The schedule above is only for the prior 6 years.  
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The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 

 

Contributions in Contributions as
relation to the a percentage of 

As of fiscal Actuarial contractually Contribution covered
Year ended Determined required deficiency employee

December 31, Contributions contribution (excess) Covered payroll payroll
Noncontributory System 2014 -$                     -$                     -$                           -$                     0.00%

2015 324,869               324,869               -                             1,898,137            17.12%
2016 1,286,917            1,286,917            -                             6,967,613            18.47%
2017 1,183,066            1,183,066            -                             6,405,346            18.47%
2018 1,105,581            1,105,581            -                             5,994,469            18.44%
2019 1,137,262            1,137,262            -                             6,172,651            18.42%
2020 1,047,633            1,047,633            -                             6,298,398            16.63%

Contributory System 2014 1,015,312            1,015,312            -                             7,328,915            13.85%
2015 759,296               759,296               -                             5,253,545            14.45%
2016 2,415                   2,415                   -                             16,699                 14.46%
2017 -                       -                       -                             -                       0.00%
2018 43,272                 43,272                 -                             209,018               20.70%
2019 -                       -                       -                             -                       0.00%
2020 -                       -                       -                             -                       0.00%

Public Safety System 2014 708,347               708,347               -                             2,218,337            31.93%
2015 766,816               766,816               -                             2,428,017            31.58%
2016 747,063               747,063               -                             2,396,789            31.17%
2017 668,028               668,028               -                             2,138,980            31.23%
2018 621,606               621,606               -                             1,966,606            31.61%
2019 637,174               637,174               -                             1,969,488            32.35%
2020 634,312               634,312               -                             1,985,488            31.95%

Tier 2 Public 2014 317,572               317,572               -                             1,953,480            16.26%
Employees System* 2015 415,556               415,556               -                             2,580,281            16.11%

2016 445,657               445,657               -                             2,988,978            14.91%
2017 433,557               433,557               -                             2,886,933            15.02%
2018 436,909               436,909               -                             2,848,947            15.34%
2019 544,460               544,460               -                             3,489,972            15.60%
2020 578,279               578,279               -                             3,785,192            15.28%

Tier 2 Public Safety 2014 131,438               131,438               -                             599,642               21.92%
and Firefighter 2015 192,940               192,940               -                             856,612               22.52%
System* 2016 202,636               202,636               -                             900,603               22.50%

2017 230,223               230,223               -                             1,021,394            22.54%
2018 274,053               274,053               -                             1,199,053            22.86%
2019 362,362               362,362               -                             1,568,199            23.11%
2020 443,892               443,892               -                             1,806,098            24.58%

Tier 2 Public 2014 4,484                   4,484                   -                             57,060                 7.86%
Employees DC Only 2015 17,548                 17,548                 -                             225,087               7.80%
System* 2016 22,906                 22,906                 -                             342,390               6.69%

2017 31,135                 31,135                 -                             465,391               6.69%
2018 33,640                 33,640                 -                             488,284               6.89%
2019 39,947                 39,947                 -                             595,109               6.71%
2020 58,554                 58,554                 -                             787,862               7.43%

Tier 2 Public Safety 2014 1,585                   1,585                   -                             15,944                 9.94%
 and Firefighter DC 2015 4,628                   4,628                   -                             39,118                 11.83%
Only System 2016 5,432                   5,432                   -                             45,922                 11.83%

2017 5,231                   5,231                   -                             44,221                 11.83%
2018 5,030                   5,030                   -                             42,520                 11.83%
2019 6,041                   6,041                   -                             51,063                 11.83%
2020 9,672                   9,672                   -                             81,762                 11.83%

* Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems.
Tier 2 systems were created effective July 1, 2011.

Paragraph 81.b of GASB 68 requires employers to disclose a 10-year history of contributions in RSI.  This will need to built prospectively. 
The schedule above is only for the last seven years.  Contributions as a percentage of covered-payroll may be different than the board
certified rate due to rounding and other administrative issues.  
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Changes in Assumptions:   

As a result of the passage of SB 129, the retirement rates for members in the Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 
Hybrid System have been modified to be the same as the assumption used to model the retirement pattern in the 
Tier 1 Public Safety and Firefighter Systems, except for 10% load at first eligibility for unreduced retirement prior 
to age 65. 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules:   

The budgetary comparison schedule present in this section of the report is for the County’s General Fund. 

Budgeting and Budgetary Control: 

Budgets for the General Fund are legally required and are prepared and adopted on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 

Original budgets represent the revenue estimates and spending authority authorized by the County Council prior 
to the beginning of the year.  Final budgets represent the original budget amounts plus any amendment made to 
the budget during the year by the Council through formal resolution.  Final budgets do not include unexpended 
balances from the prior year because such balances automatically lapse to unreserved fund balance at the end of 
each year.
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Utah Department of Health

PH Preparedness 93.069 212700122 171,984           
TB Elimination 93.116 202700583 4,200               
Immunization VFC 93.268 192701013 27,364             
Hospital Preparedness 93.889 212700122 79,872             
Covid19 Contact Tracing 21.019 212700014 133,771           
Covid19 Response 21.019 202700756 388,219           
Community Health Workers 21.019 212700096 47,215             
Comprehensive Tobacco 93.305 162700018 14,710             
Flu Clinic Capacity 93.268 202701059 929                  
ELC Covid19 93.268 202700956 -                  
Medical Reserve Corps 93.889 212700122 3,229               
Hospital Preparedness Covid19 93.889 202700061 16,694             
EPICC 1815A Diabetes 93.426 192700380 3,363               
EPICC 1815B CVD 93.426 192700380 4,739               
HIV Prevention 93.94 182700670 86                    
MCH Services 93.994 162700348 63,540             
Community Based CSHCN 93.994 182700579 64,425             
CHEC Administration 93.778 162700979 7,621               
CHEC Professional 93.778 162700979 -                  
STD Prevention 93.977 192700669 3,626               
Vaccine Preventable Disease 93.323 202700512 740                  
Enhanced HCV/HBV 93.27 192700570 350                  
Early Childhood Development 93.778 162700996 1,579               
Asthma 93.778 202700481 21,369             
Prion Disease 93.323 202700512 -                  
OD Data to Action 93.136 212700665 7,593               
Epi Outbreak & Response 93.323 202700512 1,824               
MCH Injury 93.994 202700014 14,102             
Fall Prevention 93.761 202700014 -                  
Consumer Education & Assistance 93.778 202700276 14,409             
EPICC PBG 93.991 192700380 37,468             
PBG Injury 93.991 202700014 4,735               
Opioid Overdose (ccrt) 16.754 202700014 3,980               
Sexual Violence 93.136 192700951 9,656               
Abstinence Education 93.235 212700574 65,809             
EPICC 1807 PAN 93.439 192700380 604                  
EPICC 1817A Diabetes 93.435 192700380 14,941             
EPICC 1817B CVD 93.435 192700380 16,761             

Total passed-through Utah Department of Health 1,251,506        -                                    -                  

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,251,506     -                                    -                 

U.S. Department of Agriculture
** WIC Administration 10.557 202700364 82,569             82,569            
** WIC Nutrition 10.557 202700364 62,723             62,723            
** WIC Breastfeeding 10.557 202700364 25,557             25,557            
** WIC Client Services 10.557 202700364 89,515             89,515            
** WIC Peer Counseling 10.557 202700364 6,952               6,952              
** WIC Technology Services 10.557 202700364 5,857               5,857              
** WIC Food Vouchers 10.557 202700364 559,364           559,364          

Total passed-through trhough Utah Department of Health 832,536           -                                    832,536          

NRCS 10.904 NR198D43xxxxC004 458,042           458,042                             
USDA 10.025 8,200               -                                    

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,298,779     458,042                           832,536        

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title
Federal CFDA 

Number
Direct or Pass-Through 

Grantors Contract Expenditures
Non-cash 
assistance

Passed Through to 
Subrecipients
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U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed-through State of Utah

Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 EMPG-2019-DEM-048 4,685               
Homeland Security Program 97.067 DEM-2017-SHSP-005 40,119             
Homeland Security Program 97.067 DEM-2018-SHSP-005 -                  
Homeland Security Program 97.067 DEM-2019-SHSP-005 41,831             

Total passed-through State of Utah 86,635             -                                    

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 86,635           -                                    

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program

Bullet Proof Vest 17                          1,070               
Total Direct Programs 1,070               

Passed-through Utah Department of Commission on Criminal and Juvenille Justice
JAG - Justice Assistance Grant 17A185 4,312               
Internet Crimes Against Children (ICAC) MOU 11,789             
Victims of Crime 16.575 19-VOCA0165 / 20VOCA065 172,878           
Victims of Crime 16.575 16VOCA016 248,048           

437,027           -                                    

Total U.S. Department of Justice 438,097         -                                    

U.S. Department of Interior
VFAST Contract M-19-D81-0-000051 6,028               

Total U.S. Department of Interior 6,028             -                                    

U.S. Department of Transportation 20.106 AIP 3-49-0037-33 79,864             
Runway Reconstruction 20.106 AIP 3-49-0037-038-2020 190,566           
Ground Water Mitigation

Passed-through State of Utah Department of Transporation
Runway Relocation 20.106 AIP 3-49-0037-34 50,542             50,542                               
Master Plan Update 20.106 AIP 3-49-0037-035-2019 174,958           174,958                             
VEL Mott Land Acquisition 20.106 AIP 3-49-0037-036-2019 64,333             64,333                               
Airport CARES Act 20.106 AIP 3-49-0037-039-2020 781,329           781,329                             

Total passed-through State of Utah of Department of Transportation 1,071,162        1,071,163                          

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,341,592     1,071,163                       

U.S. Department of Treasury
* CARES ACT 21.019 21,791             
* CARES ACT 21.019 3,637,210        
* CARES ACT 21.019 951,772           

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 4,610,773     -                                    

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed-through Utah Department of Environmental Quality 

Environmental Quality Programs 66.605 210347 350,658.74
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 350,658.74 -                                    

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 9,384,068     1,529,205                       832,536        

* Denotes a major program
** Non-cash

Total passed-through Utah Department of Commission on Criminal 
and Juvenille Justice
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Reporting Entity 

Uintah County, for purpose of the financial statements, includes all of the funds of the primary 
government as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal grant activity of 
the County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2020.  
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  All awards are identified on 
the schedule as direct or indirect.  Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of the County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes 
in net asset or cash flows of the County. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule of Federal Awards reported on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in 
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.  Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made 
in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.  The County 
has elected to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 

Loans Outstanding 

The County did not have any federally insured loans outstanding at year-end. 

Non-Cash Assistance 

The County receives non-cash assistance in the form of WIC vouchers, see schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

Honorable County Commission 
Uintah County 
Vernal, Utah 84078 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Uintah County, Utah, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Uintah County’s basic financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated October 1, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Uintah County’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Uintah County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Uintah County’s internal 
control. 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected, and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Uintah County’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Larson & Company, PC 

Spanish Fork, Utah 
October 1, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPROT ON COMPLIANCE AND 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE 

 
Honorable County Commission 
Uintah County 
Vernal, Utah 84078 

 
Report On Compliance with General State Compliance Requirements 
We have audited Uintah County’s compliance with the applicable general state compliance requirements described in the State 
Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State Auditor that could have a direct and material effect on Uintah 
County for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

State compliance requirements were tested for the year ended December 31, 2020 in the following areas: 
 Budgetary Compliance 
 Fund Balance 
 Justice Courts 
 Restricted Taxes and Other Related Revenues 
 Open and Public Meetings Act 
 Fraud Risk Assessment 
 Cash Management 
 Enterprise Fund Transfers, Reimbursements, Loans, and Services 
 Impact Fees 
 Utah Retirement Systems 
 Public Treasurer’s Bond 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the general state requirements referred to above. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Uintah County’s compliance based on our audit of the state compliance 
requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Compliance Audit Guide. Those standards and 
the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
state compliance requirement occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Uintah County’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each state compliance requirement 
referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Uintah County’s compliance with those 
requirements. 

Opinion on Compliance 
In our opinion, Uintah County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. 
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Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in accordance 
with the State Compliance Audit Guide and which are described in the attached schedule of findings and question.  
Our opinion on compliance is not modified with respect to these matters.  

The County’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in our management letter. The 
County’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on the response. 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 
state compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the 
County’s internal control over compliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with those state 
compliance requirements and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Compliance 
Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance. 

 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a state compliance requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will not be prevented or detected and corrected 
on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a state compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Larson & Company, PC 

Spanish Fork, Utah 
October 1, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERANAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Honorable County Commission 
Uintah County 
Vernal, Utah 84078 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS 
We have audited Uintah County, Utah’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Uintah County’s major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. Uintah County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal 
awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Uintah County’s major federal programs based on our 
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Uintah County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Uintah County’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, Uintah County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
Management of Uintah County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered 
Uintah County’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Uintah County’s internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Finding UG-2020.1 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs is considered a 
material weakness in internal control. We did not identify any other deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

Larson & Company, PC 

Spanish Fork, Utah 
October 1, 2021
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Summary of the Auditor’s Results 
 

1- Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles: 

Governmental activities      Qualified 
Business-type activities      Unmodified 
Governmental funds        Unmodified 
Business-type funds        Unmodified 
Discretely presented component units  Unmodified 
Aggregate remaining fund information  Unmodified 

 
2- No reportable conditions related to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Auditor’s Report on 

Internal Controls and Compliance with Laws and Regulations, however, significant deficiencies were identified and 
reported in the schedule of findings and questioned costs hereafter. 

 
3- No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the County were disclosed during the audit. 

 
4- Material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal award program is reported in the Report on Compliance 

with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with 
Uniform Guidance. 

 
5- The independent auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the County, expresses an 

unmodified opinion. 
 

6- The audit disclosed audit findings that are required to be reported under 2 CFR section 200.516(a).  
 

7- The programs tested as a major program include: 
 

Coronavirus, Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act or the CARES Act 21.019 
 

8- The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs is $750,000 of federal awards expended. 
 

9- The County was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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Utah State Compliance Findings 
 
SC-2020.1 Open and public meetings act 

Criteria: Utah Code 52-4-202(1)(a)(i) A public body shall give not less than 24 hours public notice of each meeting.  

Condition: As part of our testing of the open and public meetings act, we are required to select two public meetings and 
document the County’s compliance. One of those meetings selected did not give at least 24 hours’ notice on the Utah Public 
Notice Website. The agenda for the meeting was posted to the website 9 days after the meeting was held.  

Cause of condition: Oversight by management. 

Potential effect of condition: Noncompliance with the open and public meetings act.  

Recommendation: We recommend that management post all agendas for public meetings on the UPN website at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.  

Client response:  This was an oversight, we are not sure exactly what happened on the week that you sampled, we are guessing 
that something went wrong with the initial posting, and it was corrected and updated pushing the date out.  Will watch more 
closely to see that it does not happen again.   

SC-2020.2 Open and public meetings act 

Criteria: Utah Code 17-36 requires counties to provide a 7-day notice of the public hearing wherein the budget will be discussed 
and adopted, as well as making the budget available to the public for inspection at least 10 days prior to adoption.  

Condition: Uintah County’s 2021 final budget was adopted on December 28, 2020. Notices for the budget public hearings were 
posted to the UPN website on October 28, for the November meeting to discuss the budget, however, no notice was posted to 
the UPN website for the public hearing wherein the budget was adopted. The county didn’t provide a 7-day notice prior to the 
meeting of December 30, 2020. 

Cause of condition: Oversight by management. 

Potential effect of condition: Noncompliance with open and public meetings act.  

Recommendation: We recommend that management ensures that the county provide notice of public hearings in excess of the 
minimum required time frame outline by Utah Code. 

Client response: Uintah County respectively disagree with your interpretation of the public hearing requirements contained in 
Utah Code 17-36 relating to the adoption of the budget and we believe the county complied with the public hearing 
requirements of Utah Code 17-36.  According to our reading of Utah Code 17-36, the governing body is required to hold a 
(singular) public hearing on the adoption of the budget.  Accordingly, on November 16, 2020 Uintah County held a public 
hearing on the adoption of the budget where all interested persons were given an opportunity to be heard for or against the 
budget.  This public hearing was properly noticed, as required in Utah Code 17-36-12: 

1. In a newspaper of general circulation within the county on November 3, 2020,  
2. The Utah Public Notice Website on October 28, 2020, and  
3. The County’s website on October 28, 2020.       

In accordance with Utah Code 17-36-15, on December 28, 2020, the governing body adopted the budget. 
Additionally, you have not provided any reasoned justification for your recommendation that the county provide notice of the 
required public hearings in excess of the requirements set forth in Utah Code.  It is our position that the notice time frame 
outlined in Utah Code is legally required and was in all points followed. 
 Following are the relevant sections of Utah Code 17-36:  
17-36-12; “The governing body shall determine the time and place for the public hearing on the adoption of the budget.” 
17-36-13; “At the specified time and place or at any time and place to which such public hearing may be adjourned, the 
governing body shall hold a public hearing on the budget where all interested persons shall have an opportunity to be heard for 
or against the estimates of revenue and expenditures and performance data or any item in any fund”. 
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17-36-14; “After the public hearing the governing body shall make final adjustments to the tentative budget as it deems 
appropriate, giving due consideration to matters discussed at the hearing. Nevertheless, there shall be no decrease in the 
amount appropriated, as provided in Section 17-36-17, for reduction of any deficit which exists, nor shall any budget increase 
exceed the estimated revenue for such budget”. 
17-36-15 “On or before the last day of each fiscal period, the governing body by resolution shall adopt the budget”. 
 
Financial Statement/Control Findings 
 
IC-2020.1 Control environment (Significant deficiency) 

Criteria:  In accordance with the Green Book and COSO, the control environment is the foundation for an internal control 
system. It provides the discipline and structure, which affect the overall quality of internal control. It influences how objectives 
are defined and how control activities are structured. Those charged with governance and management establish and maintain 
an environment throughout the County that sets a positive attitude towards internal controls.  

Condition: Although control systems are designed and implemented over financial reporting, the County lacks a policy and/or 
controls regarding the control environment that are non-financial controls.  

Cause of condition: The effect of the lack of controls over the environment will result in inefficiencies, inaccuracies, 
misinformation, disregard for established controls, and generally low morale of County employees. These effects have the 
potential to materially affect the overall compliance with state and federal requirements and financial reporting, as well as 
increasing the County’s risk of fraud and/or litigation. 

Recommendation: The County should implement policies and controls in relation to the control environment. These policies 
should include the following at a minimum; the oversight body and management should demonstrate a commitment to 
integrity and ethical values, which should be communicated both verbally and by example on a frequent basis; a code of 
conduct, which is communicated often and periodically updated as necessary. The code of conduct and commitment to 
integrity and ethical values policies should also explicitly prohibit inappropriate management override of established controls.  

Client response: Uintah County disagrees completely with this finding. References to the Green Book and COSO are inapplicable 
to local government entities such as Uintah County. 

First, the “Green Book” is the nickname for the Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government. This document is 
prepared by the Comptroller General to issue standards for internal control in the federal government. See generally, Section 
3512 (c) and (d) of Title 31 of the United States Code (commonly known as the Federal Managers’ Financial Integrity Act 
(FMFIA)). In fact, the Green Book itself states “[it] may also be adopted by state, local…governmental entities…as a framework 
for an internal control system. Nothing in state law requires local governments to adopt the Green Book or its framework. Thus, 
reference to it herein is a distraction and misrepresents the legal requirements imposed on local governments by the Utah 
State Legislature.  

Second, COSO model was developed to address corporate settings. It would be much more productive for this audit to review 
relevant provisions of laws enacted by the Utah State Legislature rather than just mirroring audits performed on whole 
different entities and requirements imposed thereon.  

 IC-2020.1 is unsupported by any citations to actual events or documents. Thus, a detailed reply would be simply an exercise in 
conjecture and speculation. However, a few simple responses are warranted.  

1.  The Auditor seems to be unaware of the structure and dynamics of county government.  The only issues at play are partisan 
politics and interpersonal relationships.  Neither of which is addressed by these findings. 

2.  The theories included in the Green Book and COSO assume the entire leadership of the County has the same goal.  In Uintah 
County government there is a faction that believes service to the taxpayer is the first priority and there is a faction which has 
different priorities. 

3.  Because of the unique position elected officials hold within the County structure, there are limited control mechanisms 
available for ensuring compliance and accountability to County policy.  The references which are provided and the 
recommendations presented are dependent upon accountability. 



Uintah County 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 

93  
. 

 

4.  As stated in paragraph 1, there are no concrete examples cited with this finding which may explain why there are no tangible 
recommendations. 

5.  Most all of the discussion is an amalgamation of ‘maybe’, ‘possibly’, ‘might’ and ‘could’ scenarios that seem to make these 
findings more performance related.  Not only were your services not retained to prepare a performance audit, the manner in 
which the Audit was conducted does not provide reliable performance information. 

6.   The Auditor was asked the specific question of whether the approval of a budget was a de facto approval of all line items 
within that budget irrespective of County Policy and State Code.  The Audit does not seem to have addressed that question 
although this would have been the Finding in which to report. 

Some of the Audit findings specifically identify “Commissioners”, “the Commission” and “the County” (which implies “the 
Commission”) but the findings related to other elected officials are submerged within such generic terms as “management” and 
“governance”.   This type of description is not helpful to the public or the County.  Specifics help all of those involved to make 
the necessary corrections. 

This finding seems to fail both as a financial audit finding and a performance audit finding. 

For these reasons, Uintah County rejects this finding in its entirety.  

IC-2020.2 Conflicts of interest (Significant deficiency) 

Criteria: In accordance with the Green Book and COSO, documentation and disclosure of conflicts of interest by both 
governance and management is a critical control especially within a governmental entity that is entrusted with public funds. 

Condition: It was noted that those charged with governance and key members of management did not sign and document 
conflicts of interest during the period under audit.  

Cause of condition:  Lack of training and/or knowledge of governance on key internal controls. 

Potential effect of condition: Having no documented and signed conflict of interest statements has the potential to negatively 
impact the County and its decisions in appearance to the public to whom they are responsible. This control deficiency increases 
the fraud risk within the County. 

Recommendation:  The County should require those charged with governance, as well as management to document and sign 
to actual or potential conflicts of interests on a standardized form at a minimum on an annual basis. Governance as well as 
management should be aware of all conflicts of interest and document and retain that documentation when one or more 
individuals have recused themselves from discussions or decisions involving those to whom there is an actual or potential 
conflict of interest.  

Client response: See above problems with referencing the Green Book and COSO.  Uintah County agrees that Annual Conflict of 
Interest Statements should have been filed for 2020, as required by Title 17 Chapter 16a County Officers and Employees 
Disclosure Act.  The record plainly shows that prior to 2020 and in 2021 Statements were in fact filed.  Unusual circumstances 
combined to cause a lack of compliance in 2020.  There is no evidence showing the temporary lapse resulted in any violations 
or impeded corrective actions. 

The Commission is developing a desk reference with this and other key actions which are required each year. 

IC-2020.3 Information technology policies and procedures (Significant deficiency) 

Criteria: In order to prevent unwarranted access, prevent fraudulent behavior, unauthorized management override, and to 
protect sensitive data, there must be written policies and procedures regarding information technology (IT) in place and 
followed. The COSO model outlines the principles that should be addressed within the policies and procedures.  

Condition: When communicating with members of management and those charged with governance, we noted that significant 
policies and procedures related to IT  have not been implemented. More specifically, policies addressing access controls, off-
site data back-up and storage, separation of duties in relation to design vs. testing when reporting system is modified, 
termination of access, and the ability to change and override transactions by those who are not authorized to make those 
changes within the system.  
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Cause of condition: Oversight by management and governance to place high priority on system security, which should be an 
ongoing discussion.  

Potential effect of Condition: Having outdated or weak controls over IT security can result in material deficiencies in financial 
reporting, unsecure access to sensitive data both from within the County and external parties, potential misappropriation of 
assets, and/or theft of data.  

Recommendation:  The county currently has draft policies regarding information technology. Our recommendation is that the 
County implement those policies as soon as possible. We also recommend that the County assign the IT manager to research 
the most current methods of securing information, user access, and data back-up and storage. The following are some controls 
to identify and implement; multi-factor authentication, password controls, off-site storage and back-up in addition to the back-
up at the public safety building, limiting user access to only required roles within the financial reporting software, and 
separating duties when designing changes to the software, testing those changes, and implementing those changes.  

Client response: Uintah County agrees with the recommendation to complete implementation of the draft IT policies.  These 
policies have been under review by Human Resources and the County Attorney and should be ready for implementation.  Multi-
factor authentication and password controls are among the draft policies. 

Off-site cloud storage has been considered on several occasions including earlier this year at the local Strata facility.  Cloud is 
still more expensive than physical records but there may be other secure options at reasonable prices.  The County will 
continue to work on this item. 

IT staff limitations are a concern given that the County requires redundancy for each program area.  The County has begun 
exploring options to meet the needs of end users while maintaining the integrity and security of the entire system.  Options 
currently being explored include additional staffing including technician level positions and third party solutions. 

IC-2020.4 Financial reporting year-end closing and financial statement preparation (Significant deficiency) 

Criteria: Best practices, COSO principles, and properly functioning controls required that management and governance properly 
close financial reporting periods shortly after those periods, typically less than 60 days. Accounting standards and governmental 
auditing standards also require that a member of governance have the skills, knowledge, and experience (SKE) to either prepare 
financial statements and accompanying notes or assume responsibility for those statements.  

Condition: Currently, the county relies on the auditor to prepare financial statements and related notes to the financial 
statements.  

Cause of condition: Management has relied on the auditors in the past to assist in the preparation of the financial statements 
and related notes. Management had not assumed that responsibility as the auditors had performed those duties in the past.  

Potential effect of condition: By relying on the auditors to prepare financial reports and potentially propose material entries 
can result in material misstatements within the financial reporting software prior to the audit and throughout the reporting 
period. This also has the potential to blur the independence lines the auditor is required to follow.  

Recommendation:  We recommend that management close the books within a reasonable time after year-end in order to 
begin the audit process earlier, and to be completed on time. We also recommend that management obtain the knowledge and 
training to prepare financial reports and related notes. Current auditors are willing to provide that training. 

Client response: As stated in the findings the county has always relied on the auditors to prepare the financial statements and 
related notes from balance sheets, revenue and expense summaries and trial balance worksheets that were provided to the 
auditors each year.   The County Clerk-Auditor will work with the current auditors to implement this recommendation for the 
2021 audit. 
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UG-2020.1 Questioned costs (Material weakness) 
Grant title: Coronavirus, Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
Grant CFDA: 20.019 
 
Criteria: Per 2 CFR 200 Subparts D&E, the County must establish and maintain effective internal controls over the Financial 
Award that provides reasonable assurance that the management of the federal award is in compliance with Federal statutes, 
regulations and the terms and conditions of the federal award.  

Condition: The County distributed $3,495,267 in economic recovery grants to small businesses within the County. In review of 
these disbursements, we noted that there was a lack of documentation on how the assigned committee determined the 
financial need of the businesses and how they had been adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The committee did not 
require that these businesses submit financial reports that specified their financial need, nor did they document any other 
procedures that verified the accuracy of the information that the businesses did provide. In addition to a lack of due diligence 
on the part of the committee, it was noted that the County distributed $127,000 of that amount to parties, that in appearance 
or actuality, are related to or owned by Commissioners of the County. As noted in finding IC-2020.2 the County did not require 
or maintain conflict of interest statements by Commissioners or key management, as some of these members were also 
members of the committee assigned to distribute the grants. There is also no record or documentation that any of these 
members recused themselves in decisions regarding approval of and amounts paid to related parties.  

Cause of condition: The questioned costs resulted from the override of controls by Commissioners and member of the assigned 
committee. Members of the committee and Commissioners disregarded or misinterpreted federal grant requirements. 
Additionally, the County did not appear to have any policies and procedures over federal awards as required by federal 
regulations (2 CFR 200 subparts D&E), which contributed to the misinterpretation and disregard of grant compliance 
requirements.  

Potential effect of condition: Noncompliance with federal award requirements, potential loss of future federal awards, and a 
general diminish of public trust in County governance and its management.  

Recommendation: The County must establish written general policies and procedures over the expenditure of federal awards. 
Written policies, procedures and controls over the expenditure of federal awards related to specific awards granted to the 
County, which are contained in all grant agreements. Compliance requirements should be discussed when any federal awards 
are expended. As noted in finding IC-2020.2 the County should require conflict of interest statements be signed at a minimum 
on an annual basis by governance and management. Along with the retention of conflict-of-interest statements, documentation 
should be retained to document the recusal of individuals when discussions or decisions are made regarding parties that are 
related to those individuals.  

Client response: Uintah County agrees in part and disagrees in part with this finding. 

Within the “Condition” and “Cause of Condition” the Auditor has relied on incorrect or irrelevant information.  The County, in 
concert with the cities of Ballard, Naples and Vernal followed the procedures set out by the State of Utah and the Federal 
Government in distributing the Federal funds to local businesses and other projects.  In both rounds of distribution the 
County/Cities group followed the process.  The selection committee received copies of IRS Schedule C and Utah Tax Form TC-
40, collected information for IRS Form W-9 and informed the applicant that the grant was taxable and subject to IRS audit.   

The “Condition” also states, in part, “… it was noted that the County distributed $127,000 of that amount to parties, that in 
appearance or actuality, are related to or owned by Commissioners of the County”.  This statement is incorrect in part and 
irrelevant in total.  One Commissioner was a partial owner in one business which applied.  That Commissioner recused himself 
from the Selection Committee deliberation and left the room.  In the Commission meetings of December 28, 2020 and January 
4, 2021, both Commissioner Haslem and Commissioner Horrocks recused themselves, on the record, from consideration of any 
approval for a business owned by a family member.  The Uintah County Clerk/Auditor and Deputy County Attorney were both 
present in the meetings and were interactive. 

Information about this process was available through GRMA and through public meeting minutes of the Uintah County 
Commission.  There does not seem to be any violation of statute or policy regarding the approval of the grants.  The reference 
to “appearance”  implies it is not a fact but a perception.  Perception is not reality.  The Commission can explain these items for 
people but the Commission cannot understand these items for people.  
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With respect to written general policies and procedures for federal awards, the County has followed the same procedure for 
years through different grant administrators and commissioners.  Custom is not an acceptable defense but it is an explanation.  
No one brought this issue to the attention of the Commission.  To state that the Commission “overrode the controls” is not 
accurate.  That statement implies the Commission knew the process and intended to circumvent that process.   

Uintah County does agree that now that we aware of the shortcomings of our past processes that all personnel involved in the 
federal grants program will receive the necessary training from any and all legitimate sources.  As that knowledge base grows 
written policy and procedure will be implemented with local training for County employees. 

UG-2020.2 Preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Criteria: In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, management is responsible for the preparation of the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) in a format appropriate for presentation as supplementary information in 
the annual financial report. Additionally, management should ensure that the SEFA is properly prepared in relation to the 
expenditures and revenue recognized in the current period financial reports.  

Condition: Currently, county personnel do not have sufficient experience and training to ensure that the SEFA is prepared in an 
appropriate format required by generally accepted accounting principles, and tied back to revenues and expenditures 
contained in the financial reporting system.  

Cause of condition: The County has had significant turnover for personnel administering federal grant programs. Current 
personnel have limited experience and training, and former employees providing training likely also had limited experience and 
training themselves.  

Potential effect of condition: Without proper training and experience, the County may not have appropriate controls in place 
over the tracking and preparation of the SEFA. Without proper training and experience the SEFA could contain material 
misstatements.  

Recommendation: The County should obtain and provide necessary training to current personnel that are tasked with the 
responsibility of tracking and reporting expenditures of federal awards, and accurate preparation of the SEFA to include in the 
annual financial report. Additionally, the County should implement controls over the SEFA preparation.  

Client response: Uintah County agrees that the cause of the condition is accurate. Uintah County had a period with high 
turnover, and at the time we hired Zeke Atwood as the Grants Administrator, prior staff had moved on, and there was no one 
here to help train him on proper SEFA preparations. The State Auditor's office recently offered training to Zeke and his assistant 
on this matter. Zeke has reached out to the State Auditor's Office to set up training with them.  Additionally, he has started the 
process to create and implement controls over the SEFA preparation. The county's goal is to have appropriate controls in place 
over the tracking and preparation of the SEFA. With the work that has already begun, we are confident we will achieve these 
goals. 

 

The following attachment are findings noted by the Utah State Auditor in their audit of the same period. These findings, 
recommendations, and responses should also be noted in conjunction with our findings and recommendations.  
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GenerallyꢀAcceptedꢀAccountingꢀPrinciplesꢀ

N/A SD‐cꢀ 7

5. ImproperꢀSpendingꢀofꢀCoronavirusꢀReliefꢀFundꢀMoniesꢀ CoronavirusꢀReliefꢀ
Fundꢀ

MW‐c,ꢀMN‐c,ꢀ
MW‐f,ꢀMN‐fꢀ

8

6. CircumventionꢀofꢀEstablishedꢀCountyꢀPurchasingꢀPolicyꢀ N/A SD‐c,ꢀRN‐c 9

7. IneffectiveꢀFederalꢀProgramꢀManagementꢀ N/A SD‐fꢀ 11

8. MultipleꢀErrorsꢀinꢀSEFAꢀPreparationꢀDueꢀtoꢀLackꢀofꢀ
SufficientꢀCapabilityꢀandꢀControlsꢀ

N/A SD‐cꢀ 11

9. AccountingꢀSystemꢀInadequateꢀtoꢀCaptureꢀDataꢀCriticalꢀ
toꢀInternalꢀControlsꢀ

N/A SD‐cꢀ 12

10. InadequateꢀSeparationꢀofꢀDutiesꢀRelatedꢀtoꢀAccountingꢀ
SystemꢀDevelopment,ꢀDeployment,ꢀandꢀChangeꢀ
Managementꢀ

N/A SD‐cꢀ 13

11. CountyꢀOfficialsꢀDidꢀNotꢀDiscloseꢀConflictsꢀofꢀInterestꢀ
Duringꢀ2020ꢀ

N/A RN‐cꢀ 13

12. CountyꢀDidꢀNotꢀProperlyꢀOverseeꢀSubmissionꢀofꢀ
RequiredꢀReportsꢀtoꢀFederalꢀGovernmentꢀ

Airportꢀ
Improvementꢀ

Programꢀ

MW‐f,ꢀMN‐f 14
ꢀ

13. ElectronicꢀApprovalsꢀinꢀPayrollꢀSystemꢀCannotꢀBeꢀ
Verifiedꢀ

N/A OtherꢀMatter 15

County’sꢀResponseꢀ 16ꢀ

Auditor’sꢀConcludingꢀCommentꢀ 38ꢀ

ꢀ
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ManagementꢀLetterꢀNo.ꢀ21‐02ꢀ
 
Septemberꢀ30,ꢀ2021ꢀ

Mr.ꢀBradꢀHorrocks,ꢀChair,ꢀCountyꢀCommissionꢀ
Mr.ꢀMichaelꢀWilkins,ꢀClerk/Auditorꢀ
UintahꢀCountyꢀ
Vernal,ꢀUTꢀ84078‐2110ꢀ

DearꢀCommissionerꢀHorrocksꢀandꢀClerk/AuditorꢀWilkins:ꢀ
ꢀ
ThisꢀmanagementꢀletterꢀisꢀissuedꢀasꢀaꢀresultꢀofꢀourꢀauditꢀonꢀUintahꢀCounty’sꢀ(theꢀ
County)ꢀbasicꢀfinancialꢀstatementsꢀasꢀofꢀandꢀforꢀtheꢀyearꢀendedꢀDecemberꢀ31,ꢀ2020.ꢀItꢀ
isꢀalsoꢀissuedꢀasꢀaꢀresultꢀofꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfederalꢀcomplianceꢀauditꢀ(SingleꢀAudit)ꢀforꢀ
theꢀyearꢀendedꢀDecemberꢀ31,ꢀ2020.ꢀOurꢀauditꢀwasꢀconductedꢀinꢀaccordanceꢀwithꢀ
auditingꢀstandardsꢀgenerallyꢀacceptedꢀinꢀtheꢀUnitedꢀStatesꢀofꢀAmericaꢀandꢀtheꢀ
standardsꢀapplicableꢀtoꢀfinancialꢀauditsꢀcontainedꢀinꢀGovernmentꢀAuditingꢀStandards,ꢀ
issuedꢀbyꢀtheꢀComptrollerꢀGeneralꢀofꢀtheꢀUnitedꢀStates.ꢀꢀꢀ
ꢀ
OurꢀfinalꢀreportsꢀonꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀandꢀonꢀcomplianceꢀrequiredꢀunderꢀGovernmentꢀ
AuditingꢀStandardsꢀandꢀfederalꢀUniformꢀGuidanceꢀwillꢀbeꢀissuedꢀunderꢀseparateꢀcover.ꢀꢀ
Theseꢀreportsꢀwillꢀalsoꢀprovideꢀfurtherꢀdetailꢀasꢀtoꢀconsiderationsꢀmadeꢀduringꢀtheꢀ
courseꢀofꢀtheꢀauditꢀregardingꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀandꢀcompliance,ꢀbothꢀatꢀtheꢀfinancialꢀ
statementꢀandꢀatꢀtheꢀfederalꢀprogramꢀlevel,ꢀandꢀtheꢀlimitedꢀpurposesꢀofꢀthoseꢀ
considerations.ꢀTheꢀpurposeꢀofꢀthisꢀletterꢀisꢀtoꢀcommunicateꢀwithꢀCountyꢀmanagementꢀ
concernsꢀidentifiedꢀduringꢀtheꢀcourseꢀofꢀourꢀaudit.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
Aꢀdeficiencyꢀinꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀexistsꢀwhenꢀtheꢀdesignꢀorꢀoperationꢀofꢀaꢀcontrolꢀdoesꢀ
notꢀallowꢀmanagementꢀorꢀemployeesꢀtoꢀpreventꢀorꢀtoꢀdetectꢀandꢀcorrectꢀonꢀaꢀtimelyꢀ
basisꢀmisstatements,ꢀerrors,ꢀorꢀinstancesꢀofꢀnoncompliance.ꢀAꢀmaterialꢀweaknessꢀinꢀ
internalꢀcontrolꢀisꢀaꢀdeficiency,ꢀorꢀaꢀcombinationꢀofꢀdeficiencies,ꢀinꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀ
suchꢀthatꢀthereꢀisꢀaꢀreasonableꢀpossibilityꢀthatꢀmaterialꢀmisstatements,ꢀerrors,ꢀorꢀ
noncomplianceꢀareꢀnotꢀpreventedꢀorꢀareꢀnotꢀdetectedꢀandꢀcorrectedꢀonꢀaꢀtimelyꢀbasis.ꢀꢀ
ꢀꢀ
Basedꢀonꢀtheꢀauditꢀproceduresꢀperformed,ꢀweꢀidentifiedꢀcertainꢀdeficienciesꢀinꢀ
internalꢀcontrolꢀwhichꢀweꢀconsiderꢀtoꢀbeꢀmaterialꢀweaknesses.ꢀWeꢀalsoꢀidentifiedꢀ
deficienciesꢀinꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀwhich,ꢀwhileꢀnotꢀconsideredꢀmaterial,ꢀweꢀconsiderꢀtoꢀbeꢀ
significantꢀenoughꢀtoꢀmeritꢀtheꢀfurtherꢀattentionꢀofꢀmanagementꢀandꢀthoseꢀchargedꢀ
withꢀgovernance.ꢀWeꢀalsoꢀidentifiedꢀinstancesꢀofꢀnoncomplianceꢀwhichꢀweꢀareꢀ
requiredꢀtoꢀreportꢀunderꢀGovernmentꢀAuditingꢀStandardsꢀorꢀUniformꢀGuidance.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
Inꢀaddition,ꢀduringꢀourꢀaudit,ꢀweꢀalsoꢀbecameꢀawareꢀofꢀaꢀcertainꢀdeficiencyꢀinꢀinternalꢀ
controlꢀthatꢀisꢀanꢀopportunityꢀtoꢀestablishꢀorꢀstrengthenꢀinternalꢀcontrols.ꢀ
ꢀ
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TheꢀCounty’sꢀwrittenꢀresponsesꢀtoꢀandꢀCorrectiveꢀActionꢀPlansꢀforꢀtheseꢀfindingsꢀwillꢀ
beꢀincludedꢀinꢀtheꢀfinalꢀreportsꢀidentifiedꢀinꢀtheꢀsecondꢀparagraphꢀabove.ꢀꢀꢀ
ꢀ
Theꢀpurposeꢀofꢀthisꢀcommunicationꢀisꢀsolelyꢀtoꢀdescribeꢀtheꢀscopeꢀofꢀourꢀtestingꢀofꢀ
internalꢀcontrolꢀoverꢀcomplianceꢀandꢀtheꢀresultsꢀofꢀthatꢀtestingꢀandꢀnotꢀtoꢀprovideꢀanꢀ
opinionꢀonꢀtheꢀeffectivenessꢀofꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀoverꢀcompliance.ꢀ
Accordingly,ꢀthisꢀcommunicationꢀisꢀnotꢀsuitableꢀforꢀanyꢀotherꢀpurpose.ꢀHowever,ꢀ
pursuantꢀtoꢀUtahꢀCodeꢀTitleꢀ63GꢀChapterꢀ2,ꢀthisꢀreportꢀisꢀaꢀmatterꢀofꢀpublicꢀrecord,ꢀ
andꢀasꢀsuch,ꢀitsꢀdistributionꢀisꢀnotꢀlimited.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
WeꢀappreciateꢀtheꢀassistanceꢀCountyꢀpersonnelꢀextendedꢀtoꢀusꢀduringꢀtheꢀcourseꢀofꢀ
ourꢀaudit.ꢀIfꢀyouꢀhaveꢀanyꢀquestions,ꢀpleaseꢀcontactꢀme.ꢀ
ꢀ
Sincerely,ꢀ
ꢀ
ꢀ
ꢀ
HollieꢀAndrus,ꢀCPAꢀ
DeputyꢀStateꢀAuditorꢀ
801‐808‐0467ꢀ
handrus@utah.govꢀ
ꢀ
cc:ꢀ BillꢀStringer,ꢀUintahꢀCountyꢀCommissionerꢀ
ꢀ BartꢀHaslem,ꢀUintahꢀCountyꢀCommissionerꢀ
ꢀ WendiꢀLong,ꢀUintahꢀCountyꢀTreasurerꢀꢀ
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Findingꢀ1.ꢀCountyꢀLacksꢀanꢀEffectiveꢀFinancialꢀControlꢀ
Environmentꢀ
 
UintahꢀCountyꢀ(County)ꢀstrugglesꢀtoꢀestablishꢀandꢀmaintainꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀthatꢀwouldꢀ
ensureꢀaccurateꢀrecordingꢀandꢀreportingꢀofꢀfinancialꢀactivityꢀandꢀsafeguardingꢀofꢀCountyꢀ
assets.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
TheꢀCommitteeꢀofꢀSponsoringꢀOrganizationsꢀ(COSO)ꢀestablishedꢀaꢀ“bestꢀpractices”ꢀ
integratedꢀframeworkꢀofꢀinternalꢀcontrol,ꢀfoundedꢀonꢀtheꢀcentralꢀconceptꢀofꢀ“controlꢀ
environment”ꢀorꢀtoneꢀatꢀtheꢀtop,ꢀtoꢀhelpꢀanꢀorganizationꢀachieveꢀstrategicꢀobjectives.ꢀ
Throughꢀanꢀeffectiveꢀcontrolꢀenvironment,ꢀaꢀgoverningꢀbodyꢀandꢀmanagementꢀsetꢀaꢀtoneꢀ
andꢀexpectationꢀthroughoutꢀtheꢀorganizationꢀwithꢀregardꢀtoꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀandꢀ
adherenceꢀtoꢀestablishedꢀpolicies.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
TheꢀfollowingꢀareꢀinstancesꢀthatꢀhighlightꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀstruggleꢀtoꢀestablishꢀeffectiveꢀ
financialꢀinternalꢀcontrols.ꢀ
ꢀ

 CertainꢀCountyꢀofficialsꢀcircumventedꢀestablishedꢀpolicies,ꢀcreatingꢀaꢀperceptionꢀ
thatꢀthoseꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀwereꢀnotꢀimportant.ꢀSeeꢀfindingsꢀ#6ꢀandꢀ#11.ꢀ
ꢀ

 TheꢀCountyꢀClerk/Auditorꢀlacksꢀtheꢀrequisiteꢀskills,ꢀknowledge,ꢀandꢀexpertiseꢀ
necessaryꢀtoꢀoverseeꢀtheꢀpreparationꢀofꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfinancialꢀreportꢀinꢀ
accordanceꢀwithꢀgenerallyꢀacceptedꢀaccountingꢀprinciples.ꢀSeeꢀfindingsꢀ#2ꢀandꢀ#4.ꢀ

ꢀ
 ChangesꢀtoꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀoperationalꢀstructureꢀfailedꢀtoꢀimproveꢀfinancialꢀinternalꢀ

controlsꢀandꢀfailedꢀtoꢀappropriatelyꢀmitigateꢀperceivedꢀaccountingꢀrisks.ꢀ
ꢀ

o TheꢀCountyꢀCommissionꢀappointedꢀaꢀBudgetꢀOfficerꢀtoꢀimproveꢀoversightꢀofꢀ
specialꢀserviceꢀdistrictꢀbudgetsꢀunderꢀtheꢀCommission’sꢀdirectꢀsupervision.ꢀ
Thisꢀactionꢀhasꢀtheꢀpotentialꢀtoꢀimpairꢀrequiredꢀfederalꢀindependence.ꢀSuchꢀ
impairmentsꢀinꢀindependenceꢀcouldꢀnegativelyꢀimpactꢀtheꢀfederalꢀpaymentsꢀ
inꢀlieuꢀofꢀtaxesꢀ(“PILT”)ꢀandꢀmineralꢀleaseꢀmoniesꢀtheꢀCountyꢀandꢀitsꢀspecialꢀ
serviceꢀdistrictsꢀreceive.ꢀ

o TheꢀCountyꢀCommissionꢀmovedꢀCountyꢀbudgetꢀresponsibilitiesꢀfromꢀtheꢀ
Clerk/AuditorꢀtoꢀtheꢀCommission.ꢀTheꢀintentꢀwasꢀtoꢀstrengthenꢀbudgetꢀ
oversightꢀwithinꢀtheꢀCounty,ꢀbutꢀtheꢀactionꢀblurredꢀlinesꢀofꢀaccountabilityꢀ
andꢀlackedꢀclarityꢀofꢀbudgetaryꢀresponsibilities.ꢀꢀ

o TheꢀCountyꢀCommissionꢀdirectlyꢀoversawꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀuseꢀofꢀCoronavirusꢀ
ReliefꢀFunds.ꢀThisꢀactionꢀcircumventedꢀtheꢀfederalꢀgrantꢀadministrator’sꢀ
responsibilities.ꢀꢀꢀ

o TheꢀCounty’sꢀroadꢀdepartmentꢀwasꢀnotꢀfunctioningꢀeffectively.ꢀAsꢀaꢀresult,ꢀ
theꢀCountyꢀCommissionꢀrestructuredꢀthatꢀdepartment,ꢀcreatingꢀaꢀnewꢀ
fleet/purchasingꢀdepartment.ꢀUnfortunately,ꢀthisꢀchangeꢀstillꢀhasꢀnotꢀ
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improvedꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀaccountingꢀofꢀitsꢀcapitalꢀassets.ꢀSeeꢀfindingsꢀ#3ꢀandꢀ
#4ꢀforꢀfurtherꢀdiscussion.ꢀ

 NineꢀdifferentꢀrevisionsꢀtoꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀearlyꢀretirement/terminationꢀbenefitꢀ
policiesꢀduringꢀ2020ꢀmadeꢀitꢀdifficultꢀtoꢀproperlyꢀaccountꢀforꢀtheseꢀbenefitsꢀandꢀ
toꢀaccuratelyꢀreflectꢀtheꢀbenefitsꢀinꢀtheꢀfinancialꢀreport.ꢀꢀ

 
Recommendation:ꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀestablishꢀanꢀeffectiveꢀfinancialꢀcontrolꢀenvironmentꢀandꢀ
improveꢀitsꢀtoneꢀatꢀtheꢀtopꢀby:ꢀ
ꢀ

1. Enforcingꢀestablishedꢀpolicies;ꢀ
2. Realigningꢀoperationalꢀstructureꢀtoꢀstrengthenꢀinternalꢀcontrol;ꢀandꢀ
3. Workingꢀtoꢀimproveꢀtheꢀfinancialꢀskills,ꢀknowledge,ꢀandꢀexpertiseꢀofꢀkeyꢀ

personnel.ꢀ

 

Findingꢀ2.ꢀMultipleꢀSignificantꢀFinancialꢀStatementꢀ
AdjustmentsꢀRequiredꢀDueꢀtoꢀInadequateꢀFinancialꢀClose‐outꢀ
Controlsꢀ
 
TheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀhaveꢀadequateꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀfinancialꢀclose‐outꢀprocessesꢀtoꢀ
ensureꢀitꢀappropriatelyꢀrecordedꢀmaterialꢀtransactionsꢀinꢀtheꢀaccountingꢀsystem.ꢀWeꢀ
proposedꢀtheꢀadjustmentsꢀbelowꢀtoꢀalignꢀtheꢀauditedꢀfinancialꢀstatementsꢀwithꢀgenerallyꢀ
acceptedꢀaccountingꢀprinciplesꢀ(GAAP):ꢀ
 

 $3.4ꢀmillionꢀinꢀadditionalꢀcapitalꢀassetsꢀthatꢀwereꢀnotꢀproperlyꢀreflectedꢀinꢀtheꢀ
County’sꢀrecords;ꢀ

 $6.0ꢀmillionꢀinꢀdepreciationꢀexpendituresꢀbecauseꢀtheꢀCountyꢀnoꢀlongerꢀqualifiedꢀtoꢀ
useꢀGAAP’sꢀ“modifiedꢀapproach.”ꢀSeeꢀfindingꢀ#4ꢀforꢀfurtherꢀdiscussion.ꢀ

 $9.2ꢀmillionꢀofꢀmiscellaneousꢀcorrectionsꢀtoꢀcorrectlyꢀreflectꢀtaxꢀrevenues,ꢀ
interfundꢀactivity,ꢀandꢀyear‐endꢀpayableꢀaccruals.ꢀ

ꢀ
TheꢀCountyꢀshouldꢀhaveꢀanꢀeffectiveꢀsystemꢀofꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀtoꢀpreventꢀorꢀdetectꢀandꢀ
correctꢀmaterialꢀerrorsꢀinꢀfinancialꢀclose‐outꢀprocesses.ꢀMaterialꢀerrorsꢀnotedꢀaboveꢀ
occurredꢀbecauseꢀofꢀcounty‐wideꢀcontrolꢀenvironmentꢀchallengesꢀ(Seeꢀfindingꢀ#1);ꢀneglectꢀ
andꢀdisregardꢀofꢀcontrolꢀactivities,ꢀespeciallyꢀthoseꢀoverꢀcapitalꢀassetꢀmanagementꢀ(seeꢀ
findingsꢀ#3ꢀandꢀ#4);ꢀinadequateꢀfinancialꢀskills,ꢀknowledge,ꢀorꢀexpertise;ꢀandꢀanꢀover‐
relianceꢀonꢀcontractedꢀaccountingꢀservices.ꢀꢀꢀ
ꢀ
Managementꢀreliesꢀonꢀanꢀaccountingꢀfirmꢀtoꢀprepareꢀtheꢀfinancialꢀstatementsꢀandꢀtoꢀ
identifyꢀerrorsꢀbecauseꢀitꢀdoesꢀnotꢀpossessꢀadequateꢀskills,ꢀknowledge,ꢀorꢀexperienceꢀtoꢀ
prepareꢀtheꢀfinancialꢀstatements.ꢀWhileꢀitꢀisꢀnotꢀuncommonꢀforꢀaꢀlocalꢀgovernmentꢀtoꢀrelyꢀ
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onꢀanꢀaccountingꢀfirmꢀforꢀfinancialꢀstatementꢀpreparation,ꢀCountyꢀmanagementꢀshouldꢀ
haveꢀidentifiedꢀtheꢀerrorsꢀnotedꢀaboveꢀduringꢀitsꢀclose‐outꢀprocesses.ꢀAbsentꢀorꢀineffectiveꢀ
internalꢀcontrolꢀsystemsꢀcanꢀcauseꢀmaterialꢀmisstatementsꢀtoꢀoccurꢀinꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀannualꢀ
financialꢀreport.ꢀ
 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀestablishꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀitsꢀfinancialꢀclose‐outꢀ
processesꢀtoꢀidentify,ꢀrecord,ꢀandꢀreportꢀmaterialꢀtransactionsꢀforꢀexternalꢀfinancialꢀ
reportingꢀpurposes.ꢀꢀ

 
Findingꢀ3.ꢀLackꢀofꢀProceduresꢀtoꢀEnsureꢀAccurateꢀRecordingꢀ
andꢀTrackingꢀofꢀCapitalꢀAssetsꢀ
 
TheꢀCountyꢀdoesꢀnotꢀhaveꢀadequateꢀproceduresꢀinꢀplaceꢀtoꢀensureꢀthatꢀcapitalꢀassetsꢀareꢀ
properlyꢀrecordedꢀorꢀtracked.ꢀTheꢀfollowingꢀissuesꢀoccurredꢀduringꢀ2020:ꢀ
ꢀ

 Countyꢀpersonnelꢀresponsibleꢀforꢀmaintainingꢀcapitalꢀassetꢀlistingsꢀandꢀaccountingꢀ
recordsꢀdidꢀnotꢀperformꢀanꢀannualꢀcapitalꢀassetꢀinventory.ꢀ

 TheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀrecordꢀ$2.99ꢀmillionꢀforꢀdonatedꢀlandꢀandꢀaꢀnewꢀbridge.ꢀꢀ
 TheꢀCountyꢀmisidentifiedꢀandꢀexpensedꢀ$424,861ꢀofꢀassetsꢀthatꢀshouldꢀhaveꢀbeenꢀ

capitalizedꢀinꢀitsꢀrecords.ꢀꢀ
 TheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀaccountꢀforꢀsignificantꢀroadꢀorꢀinfrastructureꢀactivityꢀduringꢀ

theꢀyear.ꢀ
 TheꢀCountyꢀdoesꢀnotꢀhaveꢀcentralizedꢀcontrolꢀproceduresꢀtoꢀensureꢀthatꢀassetꢀ

acquisitionsꢀorꢀdispositionsꢀareꢀrecordedꢀorꢀthatꢀassetsꢀareꢀproperlyꢀsafeguarded.ꢀ
ꢀ
CountyꢀpersonnelꢀhaveꢀaꢀdutyꢀtoꢀsafeguardꢀCountyꢀassetsꢀthroughꢀproperꢀtrackingꢀandꢀ
recording.ꢀTheꢀdecentralizationꢀofꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀdepartments,ꢀcompoundedꢀwithꢀhighꢀ
turnoverꢀandꢀrestructuring,ꢀincreaseꢀtheꢀlikelihoodꢀofꢀcapitalꢀassetꢀactivityꢀnotꢀbeingꢀ
reflectedꢀinꢀaccountingꢀrecords.ꢀꢀFailureꢀtoꢀproperlyꢀidentify,ꢀrecord,ꢀandꢀtrackꢀcapitalꢀ
assetsꢀresultedꢀinꢀmaterialꢀadjustmentsꢀtoꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀ2020ꢀannualꢀfinancialꢀreportꢀandꢀ
toꢀaꢀqualifiedꢀopinionꢀinꢀtheꢀIndependentꢀAuditor’sꢀReport.ꢀꢀꢀ
 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCounty:ꢀ
 Atꢀleastꢀannually,ꢀperformꢀcapitalꢀassetꢀinventoryꢀprocedures;ꢀ
 Establishꢀcentralizedꢀprocessesꢀoverꢀassetꢀacquisition,ꢀtracking,ꢀandꢀ

dispositionꢀofꢀcapitalꢀassets;ꢀandꢀ
 EnsureꢀthatꢀCountyꢀpoliciesꢀandꢀproceduresꢀareꢀappliedꢀconsistentlyꢀ

throughoutꢀallꢀdepartments.ꢀ
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Findingꢀ4.ꢀAccountingꢀforꢀAssetsꢀReportedꢀUnderꢀtheꢀModifiedꢀ
InfrastructureꢀApproachꢀNotꢀinꢀAccordanceꢀwithꢀGenerallyꢀ
AcceptedꢀAccountingꢀPrinciplesꢀ
ꢀ
TheꢀCountyꢀhasꢀnotꢀusedꢀanꢀassetꢀmanagementꢀsystemꢀthatꢀproperlyꢀmaintainsꢀitsꢀroad,ꢀ
bridge,ꢀandꢀotherꢀinfrastructureꢀinventory,ꢀperformsꢀconditionꢀassessments,ꢀorꢀprovidesꢀ
annualꢀestimatesꢀofꢀmaintenanceꢀofꢀitsꢀroadꢀinfrastructureꢀinꢀfiscalꢀyearꢀ2020ꢀandꢀ
previousꢀperiods.ꢀAsꢀaꢀresult,ꢀanꢀadjustmentꢀofꢀ$6.0ꢀmillionꢀwasꢀrecordedꢀtoꢀreflectꢀtheseꢀ
assets’ꢀdepreciationꢀexpenseꢀforꢀ2020.ꢀ
 
GenerallyꢀAcceptedꢀAccountingꢀPrinciplesꢀ(GAAP)ꢀestablishesꢀtheꢀrequirementsꢀanꢀentityꢀ
mustꢀfollowꢀinꢀorderꢀtoꢀnotꢀdepreciateꢀitsꢀroads,ꢀbridges,ꢀandꢀotherꢀinfrastructure,ꢀorꢀtoꢀ
useꢀtheꢀ“modifiedꢀapproach.”ꢀKeyꢀrequirementsꢀinclude:ꢀ
ꢀ

1. anꢀassetꢀmanagementꢀsystemꢀthatꢀmaintainsꢀanꢀup‐to‐dateꢀinventoryꢀandꢀperformsꢀ
conditionꢀassessment,ꢀandꢀ

2. theꢀpreservationꢀofꢀroads,ꢀbridges,ꢀandꢀotherꢀeligibleꢀinfrastructureꢀassetsꢀatꢀ(orꢀ
above)ꢀaꢀconditionꢀlevel.ꢀ

ꢀ
Atꢀsomeꢀpointꢀpriorꢀtoꢀfiscalꢀyearꢀ2019,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀstoppedꢀusingꢀitsꢀassetꢀmanagementꢀ
systemꢀ(calledꢀIWorQ)ꢀtoꢀmanageꢀroadꢀinfrastructureꢀandꢀinstead,ꢀprovidedꢀestimatesꢀ
basedꢀonꢀjudgmentꢀtoꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀClerk/Auditorꢀforꢀfinancialꢀreportingꢀpurposes.ꢀTheꢀ
CountyꢀClerk/AuditorꢀdidꢀnotꢀconsiderꢀtheꢀeffectsꢀonꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfinancialꢀstatementsꢀ
whenꢀthisꢀchangeꢀoccurred.ꢀIfꢀtheꢀCountyꢀdoesꢀnotꢀmeetꢀtheꢀGAAPꢀrequirements,ꢀitꢀmustꢀ
depreciateꢀitsꢀroadꢀinfrastructureꢀprospectively.ꢀꢀꢀ
ꢀ
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀeitherꢀdepreciateꢀitsꢀroads,ꢀbridges,ꢀandꢀotherꢀ
infrastructureꢀorꢀfollowꢀGAAP’sꢀ“modifiedꢀapproach”ꢀrequirementsꢀbyꢀusingꢀanꢀ
appropriateꢀassetꢀmanagementꢀsystem.ꢀꢀ

 
ꢀ
Findingꢀ5.ꢀImproperꢀSpendingꢀofꢀCoronavirusꢀReliefꢀFundꢀ
Moniesꢀ
 
FederalꢀAgencies:ꢀUSꢀDepartmentꢀofꢀTreasuryꢀ
CFDAꢀNumbersꢀandꢀTitles:ꢀ21.019ꢀCoronavirusꢀReliefꢀFundꢀ
FederalꢀAwardꢀNumbers:ꢀN/Aꢀꢀ
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QuestionedꢀCosts:ꢀ$3,739,018ꢀ
Pass‐throughꢀEntity:ꢀStateꢀofꢀUtahꢀGovernor’sꢀOfficeꢀofꢀManagementꢀandꢀBudgetꢀ
PriorꢀYearꢀSingleꢀAuditꢀReportꢀFindingꢀNumbers:ꢀꢀN/Aꢀ
 
Duringꢀ2020,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀreceivedꢀfundingꢀfromꢀtheꢀStateꢀofꢀUtah’sꢀGovernor’sꢀOfficeꢀofꢀ
Managementꢀ&ꢀBudgetꢀ(GOMB)ꢀasꢀpartꢀofꢀtheꢀfederalꢀCoronavirusꢀReliefꢀFundꢀ(CRF)ꢀ
Grant.ꢀAccordingꢀtoꢀfederalꢀgovernmentꢀguidance,ꢀallꢀcostsꢀwereꢀtoꢀbeꢀincurredꢀforꢀ
“necessaryꢀexpendituresꢀincurredꢀdueꢀtoꢀtheꢀpublicꢀhealthꢀemergencyꢀwithꢀrespectꢀtoꢀtheꢀ
CoronavirusꢀDiseaseꢀ2019ꢀ(COVID‐19).”ꢀFurtherꢀtheꢀagreementꢀbetweenꢀtheꢀCountyꢀandꢀ
theꢀStateꢀrequiresꢀrecipientsꢀ“toꢀprovideꢀsummaryꢀandꢀdetailedꢀdocumentationꢀsupportingꢀ
theꢀuseꢀofꢀfunds.”ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
TheꢀCountyꢀfailedꢀtoꢀdemonstrateꢀhowꢀtheꢀfollowingꢀexpendituresꢀwereꢀnecessaryꢀandꢀ
incurredꢀasꢀaꢀresponseꢀtoꢀtheꢀCOVID‐19ꢀpandemic,ꢀasꢀfollows:ꢀ
ꢀ
SmallꢀBusinessꢀEconomicꢀRecoveryꢀGrantsꢀ
ꢀ

 TheꢀCountyꢀcouldꢀnotꢀdemonstrateꢀthatꢀrecipientsꢀhadꢀbeenꢀadverselyꢀaffectedꢀforꢀ
theꢀ$3,495,267ꢀdistributedꢀinꢀtheꢀsmallꢀbusinessꢀeconomicꢀrecoveryꢀgrants.ꢀAllꢀ
informationꢀusedꢀtoꢀdetermineꢀeligibleꢀrecipientsꢀwasꢀself‐reportedꢀandꢀtheꢀCountyꢀ
didꢀnotꢀperformꢀanyꢀproceduresꢀtoꢀverifyꢀtheꢀaccuracyꢀofꢀtheꢀinformation.ꢀꢀꢀ
Althoughꢀprovidingꢀeconomicꢀrecoveryꢀgrantsꢀtoꢀbusinessesꢀnegativelyꢀimpactedꢀbyꢀ
COVID‐19ꢀwasꢀallowable,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀmaintainꢀdocumentationꢀthatꢀ
validatedꢀtheꢀpandemic’sꢀimpactꢀonꢀapplicants.ꢀ

ꢀ
 TheꢀCountyꢀdistributedꢀ$117,000ꢀtoꢀcompaniesꢀownedꢀbyꢀcertainꢀCountyꢀofficialsꢀ

andꢀtheirꢀimmediateꢀfamilyꢀmembers.ꢀꢀTheseꢀrelatedꢀpartyꢀdistributionsꢀwereꢀnotꢀ
disclosedꢀinꢀtheꢀnotesꢀtoꢀtheꢀScheduleꢀofꢀExpendituresꢀofꢀFederalꢀAwardsꢀasꢀtheyꢀ
shouldꢀhaveꢀbeen;ꢀand,ꢀtheseꢀconflictsꢀofꢀinterestꢀwereꢀnotꢀdisclosedꢀasꢀrequiredꢀ
(seeꢀfindingꢀ#11).ꢀTheseꢀCountyꢀofficialsꢀsatꢀonꢀtheꢀcommitteeꢀthatꢀdirectedꢀtheseꢀ
disbursements.ꢀ

ꢀ
BuckskinꢀHillsꢀSkiꢀ&ꢀSnowꢀTubingꢀHillꢀ
ꢀ

 $215,761ꢀofꢀCRFꢀfundsꢀwereꢀusedꢀtoꢀpurchaseꢀequipmentꢀforꢀtheꢀBuckskinꢀHillsꢀSkiꢀ
&ꢀSnowꢀTubingꢀHillꢀ(Hill)ꢀ–ꢀanꢀoutdoorꢀrecreationalꢀfacility.ꢀTheꢀ2020ꢀOfficeꢀofꢀ
Managementꢀ&ꢀBudgetꢀ(OMB)ꢀComplianceꢀSupplementꢀrequiresꢀdocumentationꢀforꢀ
allꢀequipmentꢀpurchasesꢀjustifyingꢀwhyꢀ“moreꢀcost‐effectiveꢀmethodsꢀsuchꢀasꢀ
leasingꢀorꢀimprovingꢀequipmentꢀalreadyꢀowned,ꢀwouldꢀnotꢀmeetꢀtheꢀneedsꢀofꢀtheꢀ
publicꢀhealthꢀemergency.”ꢀTheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀmaintainꢀtheꢀrequiredꢀ
documentationꢀforꢀtheꢀequipmentꢀpurchases.ꢀ

ꢀ
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 Anꢀadditionalꢀ$27,990ꢀofꢀCRFꢀfundsꢀwereꢀspentꢀforꢀtheꢀHill,ꢀbutꢀadequateꢀ
documentationꢀwasꢀnotꢀmaintainedꢀtoꢀshowꢀhowꢀtheꢀfundsꢀwereꢀspentꢀinꢀresponseꢀ
toꢀtheꢀpandemic,ꢀasꢀrequiredꢀbyꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀagreementꢀwithꢀGOMB.ꢀꢀ

ꢀ
Recipientsꢀofꢀfederalꢀfundingꢀhaveꢀaꢀdutyꢀtoꢀensureꢀthatꢀfederalꢀfundsꢀareꢀusedꢀinꢀ
accordanceꢀwithꢀfederalꢀcomplianceꢀrequirements.ꢀTheꢀlargeꢀinfluxꢀofꢀfederalꢀpandemicꢀ
reliefꢀmoneyꢀcoupledꢀwithꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀgeneralꢀinexperienceꢀwithꢀfederalꢀprogramsꢀandꢀaꢀ
perceivedꢀdisregardꢀforꢀfederalꢀgrantꢀrequirementsꢀresultedꢀinꢀtheseꢀexpendituresꢀnotꢀ
complyingꢀwithꢀfederalꢀprogramꢀrequirements.ꢀQuestionedꢀcostsꢀmayꢀbeꢀsubjectꢀtoꢀ
repayment.ꢀ
 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCounty:ꢀ
1. Ensureꢀpersonnelꢀmanagingꢀfederalꢀprogramsꢀunderstandꢀprogramꢀobjectivesꢀ

andꢀrequirements,ꢀ
2. Maintainꢀsufficientꢀdocumentationꢀtoꢀdemonstrateꢀfederalꢀgrantꢀexpendituresꢀ

complyꢀwithꢀprogramꢀrequirements,ꢀ
3. Establishꢀcontrolꢀproceduresꢀoverꢀfederalꢀprogramsꢀtoꢀensureꢀcomplianceꢀwithꢀ

programꢀrequirements,ꢀandꢀ
4. Verifyꢀself‐certifiedꢀinformationꢀforꢀgrantꢀexpenditures.ꢀ

ꢀ
Findingꢀ6.ꢀCircumventionꢀofꢀEstablishedꢀCountyꢀPurchasingꢀ
Policyꢀ
 
Duringꢀ2020,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀcircumventedꢀestablishedꢀpurchasingꢀpolicyꢀbyꢀsplittingꢀanꢀ
invoice,ꢀignoringꢀopenꢀbidꢀrequirements,ꢀawardingꢀcontractsꢀoutsideꢀpublicꢀmeetings,ꢀandꢀ
laterꢀretroactivelyꢀmodifyingꢀitsꢀpurchasingꢀpolicy.ꢀAtꢀtheꢀtime,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀpurchasingꢀ
policyꢀrequiredꢀthatꢀpurchasesꢀexceedingꢀ$20,000ꢀgoꢀthroughꢀaꢀsealedꢀbiddingꢀprocessꢀ
andꢀbeꢀawardedꢀinꢀaꢀpublicꢀmeeting.ꢀTheꢀfollowingꢀoccurredꢀduringꢀ2020:ꢀꢀ
 

 TheꢀCountyꢀpurchasedꢀ6ꢀsnowꢀgunsꢀandꢀassociatedꢀpartsꢀforꢀtheꢀBuckskinꢀHillsꢀSkiꢀ
&ꢀSnowꢀTubingꢀHill,ꢀtotalingꢀ$146,862,ꢀincludingꢀ$3,000ꢀinꢀshippingꢀcosts.ꢀTheyꢀ
wereꢀallꢀpurchasedꢀfromꢀoneꢀvendorꢀatꢀoneꢀtime.ꢀTheꢀfollowingꢀtableꢀsummarizesꢀ
theseꢀdetails:ꢀ
 

AssetꢀDescriptionꢀ Value InvoiceꢀDate BillꢀofꢀLadingꢀ
ShippingꢀDate

SnowꢀGunꢀ#1 $19,999 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
SnowꢀGunꢀ#2ꢀ $19,999 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
SnowꢀGunꢀ#3ꢀ $19,999 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
SnowꢀGunꢀ#4ꢀ $19,999 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
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SnowꢀGunꢀ#5ꢀ $19,999 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
SnowꢀGunꢀ#6ꢀ $19,999 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
Hydrantꢀ–ꢀSleddingꢀHillꢀ $9,919 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
PitꢀElectrants/Pumpsꢀ $13,949 12/10/2020 12/16/2020
ShippingꢀFeesꢀ $3,000 12/11/2020 12/16/2020

 
OnꢀDecemberꢀ8,ꢀ2020,ꢀoneꢀCommissionerꢀauthorizedꢀtheseꢀpurchasesꢀandꢀ
approximatelyꢀoneꢀweekꢀlaterꢀonꢀDecemberꢀ14,ꢀ2020,ꢀtheꢀCommissionꢀwaivedꢀtheꢀ
purchasingꢀpolicyꢀforꢀtheꢀpurchaseꢀofꢀtheseꢀitems.ꢀ
 

 TheꢀCountyꢀauthorizedꢀandꢀpurchasedꢀaꢀ$159,000ꢀfullꢀbodyꢀscannerꢀforꢀitsꢀjailꢀonꢀ
Novemberꢀ11,ꢀ2020.ꢀTheꢀvendorꢀprovidingꢀtheꢀequipmentꢀhadꢀanꢀexistingꢀfederalꢀ
generalꢀservicesꢀadministrationꢀ(GSA)ꢀcontract.ꢀTheꢀdepartmentꢀheadꢀandꢀtheꢀ
Commissionꢀauthorizedꢀtheꢀpurchaseꢀwithoutꢀaꢀbiddingꢀprocess.ꢀTheꢀCounty’sꢀ
purchasingꢀpolicyꢀdidꢀnotꢀexemptꢀanꢀexistingꢀGSAꢀcontractꢀfromꢀtheꢀbiddingꢀ
process.ꢀOnꢀNovemberꢀ16,ꢀ2020,ꢀafterꢀtheꢀpurchaseꢀhadꢀbeenꢀauthorized,ꢀtheꢀ
CommissionꢀamendedꢀtheꢀpurchasingꢀpolicyꢀtoꢀallowꢀusingꢀaꢀGSAꢀcontractꢀtoꢀavoidꢀ
theꢀbiddingꢀprocessꢀandꢀgaveꢀaꢀretroactiveꢀauthorizationꢀforꢀthisꢀpurchase.ꢀꢀ
Retroactivelyꢀamendingꢀpoliciesꢀcreatesꢀaꢀperceptionꢀthatꢀfollowingꢀestablishedꢀ
policiesꢀisꢀnotꢀimportant.ꢀ

 
 TheꢀCountyꢀpaidꢀ$42,200ꢀforꢀsocialꢀmediaꢀandꢀotherꢀsimilarꢀservicesꢀtoꢀaꢀsingleꢀ

vendorꢀwithꢀwhomꢀtheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀhaveꢀaꢀcontract.ꢀDuringꢀtheꢀyear,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀ
issuedꢀaꢀbidꢀforꢀcommunicationꢀservicesꢀandꢀreceivedꢀtwoꢀbids,ꢀoneꢀofꢀwhichꢀwasꢀ
fromꢀthisꢀvendor.ꢀTheꢀbidꢀwasꢀneverꢀofficiallyꢀawardedꢀinꢀaꢀpublicꢀmeeting,ꢀasꢀ
requiredꢀbyꢀCountyꢀpolicy,ꢀbutꢀtheꢀCountyꢀcontinuedꢀtoꢀmakeꢀpaymentsꢀauthorizedꢀ
byꢀtheꢀCommissionꢀandꢀdepartmentꢀheads.ꢀꢀ

 
 TheꢀCountyꢀissuedꢀanꢀRFPꢀforꢀasphalt,ꢀbutꢀdidꢀnotꢀreceiveꢀanyꢀbidsꢀinꢀMarchꢀ2020.ꢀ

TheꢀCommissionꢀauthorizedꢀtheꢀRoadꢀDepartmentꢀDirectorꢀtoꢀsolicitꢀforꢀtheꢀlowestꢀ
amount.ꢀApproximatelyꢀ8ꢀmonthsꢀlater,ꢀoneꢀofꢀtheꢀCommissioners,ꢀactingꢀasꢀtheꢀ
RoadꢀDepartmentꢀDirector,ꢀbeganꢀauthorizingꢀpaymentsꢀtoꢀaꢀvendorꢀforꢀasphalt,ꢀ
citingꢀtheꢀpreviousꢀauthorizationꢀfromꢀtheꢀCommission.ꢀTheꢀbidꢀwasꢀneverꢀawardedꢀ
inꢀaꢀpublicꢀmeeting,ꢀasꢀrequiredꢀbyꢀCountyꢀPolicy.ꢀTheꢀtotalꢀamountꢀpaidꢀforꢀtheseꢀ
asphaltꢀpurchasesꢀwasꢀ$90,970.ꢀ

ꢀ
Managementꢀoverrodeꢀtheꢀexistingꢀpurchasingꢀpolicy,ꢀwhichꢀundercutsꢀeffectiveꢀinternalꢀ
controls.ꢀTheꢀkeyꢀpurposeꢀbehindꢀtheꢀestablishmentꢀofꢀpurchasingꢀprinciplesꢀisꢀensureꢀtoꢀ
taxpayersꢀtheꢀbestꢀuseꢀofꢀfunds.ꢀꢀꢀ
 
ꢀ

ꢀ
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Recommendations:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀfollowꢀitsꢀestablishedꢀpurchasingꢀpolicyꢀorꢀanalyzeꢀandꢀ
amendꢀitsꢀpolicies,ꢀasꢀneeded,ꢀinꢀadvance.ꢀ

 
Findingꢀ7.ꢀIneffectiveꢀFederalꢀProgramꢀManagementꢀ
 
FederalꢀAgencies:ꢀVariousꢀ
CFDAꢀNumbersꢀandꢀTitles:ꢀVariousꢀ
FederalꢀAwardꢀNumbers:ꢀVariousꢀꢀ
QuestionedꢀCosts:ꢀ$0ꢀ
Pass‐throughꢀEntity:ꢀVariousꢀ
PriorꢀYearꢀSingleꢀAuditꢀReportꢀFindingꢀNumbers:ꢀꢀN/Aꢀ
ꢀ
TheꢀCountyꢀdoesꢀnotꢀmanageꢀfederalꢀprograms,ꢀincludingꢀfederalꢀmoneyꢀpassedꢀtoꢀtheꢀ
CountyꢀfromꢀtheꢀState,ꢀinꢀaccordanceꢀwithꢀfederalꢀregulations,ꢀpotentiallyꢀjeopardizingꢀ
futureꢀfundingꢀandꢀreducingꢀitsꢀabilityꢀtoꢀassistꢀtheꢀintendedꢀbeneficiariesꢀofꢀfederalꢀ
programs.ꢀ2ꢀCFRꢀ200.303(a)ꢀstatesꢀaꢀ“non‐federalꢀentityꢀmustꢀestablishedꢀandꢀmaintainꢀ
effectiveꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀoverꢀtheꢀFederalꢀaward”ꢀthatꢀassuresꢀitꢀ“isꢀmanagingꢀtheꢀfederalꢀ
awardꢀinꢀcomplianceꢀwithꢀFederalꢀstatutes,ꢀregulations,ꢀandꢀtheꢀtermsꢀandꢀconditionsꢀofꢀ
theꢀFederalꢀaward.”ꢀItꢀfurtherꢀstatesꢀthatꢀ“theseꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀshouldꢀbeꢀinꢀcomplianceꢀ
withꢀguidance”ꢀinꢀtheꢀFederalꢀGreenꢀBookꢀorꢀ“theꢀInternalꢀControlꢀIntegratedꢀFramework,ꢀ
issuedꢀby”ꢀCOSO.ꢀꢀTheꢀlackꢀofꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfederalꢀawards,ꢀ
particularlyꢀitsꢀCoronavirusꢀReliefꢀFundꢀmoney,ꢀresultedꢀinꢀmaterialꢀnoncomplianceꢀandꢀ
questionedꢀcostsꢀofꢀapproximatelyꢀ$3.7ꢀmillion.ꢀ
ꢀ
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCounty:ꢀ
 Gainꢀanꢀunderstandingꢀofꢀtheꢀfederalꢀ“GreenꢀBook”ꢀorꢀ“COSOꢀFramework”,ꢀandꢀ
 Establishꢀandꢀmaintainꢀeffectiveꢀinternalꢀcontrolꢀoverꢀitsꢀfederalꢀawards.ꢀ

 
Findingꢀ8.ꢀMultipleꢀErrorsꢀinꢀSEFAꢀPreparationꢀDueꢀtoꢀLackꢀofꢀ
SufficientꢀCapabilityꢀandꢀControlsꢀꢀ
 
Countyꢀpersonnelꢀdoꢀnotꢀhaveꢀsufficientꢀexperienceꢀandꢀtrainingꢀtoꢀproperlyꢀprepareꢀtheꢀ
ScheduleꢀofꢀExpendituresꢀofꢀFederalꢀAwardsꢀ(SEFA)ꢀinꢀaccordanceꢀwithꢀ2ꢀCFRꢀ200.510(b).ꢀ
AsꢀtheꢀgrantꢀadministratorꢀreportsꢀdirectlyꢀtoꢀtheꢀCommission,ꢀtheꢀCommissionꢀlackedꢀ
controlsꢀoverꢀtheꢀSEFAꢀtoꢀensureꢀaccuracyꢀofꢀtheꢀscheduleꢀandꢀdidꢀnotꢀdetectꢀtheꢀerrorsꢀ
identifiedꢀbelow.ꢀTheꢀfollowingꢀtableꢀlistsꢀtheꢀsignificantꢀadjustmentsꢀneededꢀtoꢀproperlyꢀ
reflectꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfederalꢀexpendituresꢀforꢀfiscalꢀyearꢀ2020.ꢀ
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ꢀ
Adjustments AdjustmentꢀAmount

Removedꢀstate,ꢀlocal,ꢀandꢀprivateꢀgrantꢀexpendituresꢀfromꢀSEFA $996,295
AddedꢀvalueꢀofꢀWomen,ꢀInfants,ꢀandꢀChildrenꢀ(WIC)ꢀVouchersꢀtoꢀ

SEFAꢀunderꢀUSꢀDepartmentꢀofꢀAgricultureꢀ(USDA)
$559,334

MovedꢀWICꢀprogramsꢀfromꢀHealthꢀ&ꢀHumanꢀServicesꢀ(HHS)ꢀtoꢀ
beꢀreportedꢀunderꢀUSDAꢀ

$273,172

AddedꢀaꢀnoteꢀtoꢀtheꢀSEFAꢀtoꢀdiscloseꢀrelated‐partyꢀSmallꢀ
BusinessꢀGrantꢀRecoveryꢀexpenditures

$117,000

 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCounty:ꢀ
 DevelopꢀandꢀfollowꢀwrittenꢀpoliciesꢀandꢀproceduresꢀforꢀSEFAꢀpreparation,ꢀ
 ProvideꢀtrainingꢀtoꢀthoseꢀindividualsꢀpreparingꢀtheꢀSEFA,ꢀandꢀ
 ImplementꢀcontrolꢀproceduresꢀoverꢀtheꢀSEFAꢀpreparation.ꢀ

 
Findingꢀ9.ꢀAccountingꢀSystemꢀInadequateꢀtoꢀCaptureꢀDataꢀ
CriticalꢀtoꢀInternalꢀControlsꢀ
 
TheꢀCounty’sꢀaccountingꢀsystemꢀallowsꢀfinancialꢀtransactionsꢀtoꢀbeꢀenteredꢀorꢀalteredꢀ
withoutꢀanyꢀpostingꢀdates.ꢀꢀItꢀalsoꢀlacksꢀanꢀauditꢀtrail.ꢀPostingꢀdataꢀshouldꢀbeꢀadequatelyꢀ
controlledꢀandꢀtiedꢀtoꢀtheꢀsystemꢀdates,ꢀtimes,ꢀandꢀuserꢀloginꢀinformationꢀandꢀshouldꢀ
neverꢀbeꢀeditableꢀorꢀoverriddenꢀbyꢀaꢀsystemꢀuser.ꢀThisꢀissueꢀwasꢀcausedꢀbyꢀtheꢀlackꢀofꢀ
appropriateꢀsystemꢀcontrolsꢀexacerbatedꢀbyꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀlackꢀofꢀunderstandingꢀofꢀ
minimumꢀsystemꢀstandardsꢀtoꢀensureꢀreliabilityꢀandꢀintegrityꢀofꢀfinancialꢀtransactions.ꢀ
Withoutꢀapplicationꢀofꢀminimumꢀsystemꢀstandardsꢀandꢀproperꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀ
transactionsꢀenteredꢀinꢀtheꢀsystem,ꢀamountsꢀreportedꢀinꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀannualꢀfinancialꢀ
reportꢀmayꢀnotꢀaccuratelyꢀreflectꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfinancialꢀactivities.ꢀꢀ
 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀgainꢀanꢀunderstandingꢀofꢀminimumꢀsystemꢀstandardsꢀandꢀ
implementꢀappropriateꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀinꢀtheꢀaccountingꢀsystem.ꢀ
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Findingꢀ10.ꢀInadequateꢀSeparationꢀofꢀDutiesꢀRelatedꢀtoꢀ
AccountingꢀSystemꢀDevelopment,ꢀDeployment,ꢀandꢀChangeꢀ
Managementꢀ
 
ꢀ
TheꢀCounty’sꢀaccountingꢀsystemꢀallowsꢀdevelopers/ITꢀadministratorsꢀtheꢀabilityꢀtoꢀalterꢀ
systemꢀfunctionsꢀwithoutꢀvalidatingꢀtheirꢀaccuracy.ꢀTheꢀCountyꢀhasꢀnotꢀestablishedꢀproperꢀ
separationꢀofꢀdutiesꢀrelatedꢀtoꢀitsꢀapplicationꢀdevelopment/changeꢀmanagementꢀprocessꢀ
toꢀensureꢀaꢀdeveloperꢀcannotꢀmigrateꢀapplicationꢀsourceꢀcodeꢀfromꢀtheꢀdevelopment/testꢀ
environmentꢀintoꢀproduction.ꢀDevelopersꢀshouldꢀnotꢀbeꢀallowedꢀtoꢀmoveꢀcodeꢀintoꢀtheꢀ
productionꢀenvironment.ꢀThisꢀissueꢀisꢀtheꢀresultꢀofꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀuncertaintyꢀofꢀhowꢀtoꢀ
implementꢀapplicationꢀdevelopment/changeꢀseparationꢀofꢀdutiesꢀcontrolsꢀwithꢀlimitedꢀITꢀ
personnel.ꢀWithoutꢀadequateꢀseparationꢀofꢀdutiesꢀbetweenꢀdevelopersꢀandꢀmigrators,ꢀtheꢀ
riskꢀofꢀunauthorizedꢀchangesꢀtoꢀtheꢀsystemꢀisꢀincreased.ꢀ
 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀimplementꢀproperꢀseparationꢀofꢀdutiesꢀrelatedꢀtoꢀtheꢀ
accountingꢀsystemꢀdevelopment,ꢀdeployment,ꢀandꢀchangeꢀmanagementꢀprocesses.ꢀ

 
Findingꢀ11.ꢀCountyꢀOfficialsꢀDidꢀNotꢀDiscloseꢀConflictsꢀofꢀ
InterestꢀDuringꢀ2020ꢀ
 
NoneꢀofꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀappointedꢀofficersꢀorꢀelectedꢀofficialsꢀcompletedꢀswornꢀstatementsꢀ
disclosingꢀanyꢀbusinessꢀinterestsꢀforꢀ2020.ꢀUtahꢀCodeꢀSectionꢀ17‐16a‐6ꢀstatesꢀthatꢀ“everyꢀ
…ꢀappointedꢀorꢀelectedꢀofficerꢀwhoꢀisꢀanꢀofficer,ꢀdirector,ꢀagentꢀorꢀemployee,ꢀorꢀownerꢀofꢀ
aꢀsubstantialꢀinterestꢀinꢀanyꢀbusinessꢀentityꢀwhichꢀisꢀsubjectꢀtoꢀtheꢀregulationꢀofꢀtheꢀ
county…shallꢀdiscloseꢀtheꢀpositionꢀheldꢀandꢀtheꢀpreciseꢀnatureꢀandꢀvalueꢀofꢀtheꢀofficer’sꢀ
interestꢀuponꢀfirstꢀbecoming…elected,ꢀandꢀagainꢀduringꢀJanuaryꢀofꢀeachꢀyearꢀthereafter…ꢀ
Theꢀdisclosureꢀshallꢀbeꢀmadeꢀinꢀaꢀswornꢀstatementꢀfiledꢀwithꢀtheꢀcountyꢀlegislativeꢀbody.”ꢀꢀ
Weꢀunderstandꢀ“subjectꢀtoꢀregulationꢀofꢀtheꢀcounty”ꢀtoꢀincludeꢀanyꢀbusinessꢀrequiringꢀatꢀ
leastꢀaꢀcountyꢀbusinessꢀlicense.ꢀSeveralꢀCountyꢀelectedꢀofficialsꢀownedꢀbusinessesꢀthatꢀhadꢀ
(orꢀwereꢀrequiredꢀtoꢀhave)ꢀCountyꢀbusinessꢀlicenses.ꢀ
Historically,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀhasꢀannuallyꢀrequiredꢀallꢀelectedꢀofficialsꢀtoꢀfileꢀconflictꢀofꢀ
interestꢀdisclosureꢀstatementsꢀwithꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀHumanꢀResourcesꢀDepartmentꢀ(HR).ꢀTheꢀ
CountyꢀhiredꢀaꢀnewꢀHRꢀdirectorꢀDecemberꢀ2019ꢀwhoꢀdidꢀnotꢀcollectꢀtheseꢀdisclosureꢀ
statementsꢀforꢀ2020.ꢀHowever,ꢀelectedꢀofficialsꢀareꢀultimatelyꢀresponsibleꢀforꢀrequiredꢀ
disclosuresꢀandꢀcomplianceꢀwithꢀstateꢀlaw.ꢀAsꢀaꢀresult,ꢀcertainꢀelectedꢀofficialsꢀappearedꢀ
toꢀbeꢀinꢀviolationꢀofꢀUtahꢀCode.ꢀ
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Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀobtainꢀannualꢀconflictꢀofꢀinterestꢀdisclosureꢀstatementsꢀ
fromꢀallꢀappointedꢀorꢀelectedꢀofficialsꢀsubjectꢀtoꢀUtahꢀCodeꢀSectionꢀ17‐16a‐6.ꢀ
 

Findingꢀ12.ꢀCountyꢀDidꢀNotꢀProperlyꢀOverseeꢀSubmissionꢀofꢀ
RequiredꢀReportsꢀtoꢀFederalꢀGovernmentꢀꢀ
 
FederalꢀAgencies:ꢀUSꢀDepartmentꢀofꢀTransportationꢀ
CFDAꢀNumbersꢀandꢀTitles:ꢀ20.106ꢀAirportꢀImprovementꢀProgramsꢀ
FederalꢀAwardꢀNumbers:ꢀVariousꢀꢀ
QuestionedꢀCosts:ꢀ$0ꢀ
Pass‐throughꢀEntity:ꢀN/Aꢀ
PriorꢀYearꢀSingleꢀAuditꢀReportꢀFindingꢀNumbers:ꢀꢀN/Aꢀ
ꢀ
TheꢀCountyꢀdidꢀnotꢀmonitorꢀtheꢀsubmissionꢀofꢀrequiredꢀreportsꢀforꢀitsꢀAirportꢀ
ImprovementꢀProgramꢀ(AIP)ꢀgrants.ꢀTheꢀgrantꢀagreementsꢀstateꢀthatꢀtheꢀCountyꢀ“willꢀ
complyꢀwithꢀallꢀfederalꢀfinancialꢀreportingꢀrequirements…includingꢀsubmittalꢀofꢀtimelyꢀ
andꢀaccurateꢀreports.”ꢀPartꢀ4ꢀofꢀtheꢀ2020ꢀOMBꢀComplianceꢀSupplementꢀlistsꢀtheꢀrequiredꢀ
reports.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
CountyꢀpersonnelꢀoverꢀfederalꢀcomplianceꢀwasꢀunawareꢀofꢀAIPꢀgrantꢀrequirements.ꢀAꢀ
thirdꢀpartyꢀvendorꢀwasꢀpurportedꢀasꢀhavingꢀsubmittedꢀtheseꢀreports.ꢀWhenꢀinitiallyꢀ
questioned,ꢀtheꢀCountyꢀhadꢀnotꢀcompletedꢀorꢀensuredꢀtimelyꢀsubmissionꢀofꢀtheseꢀreports.ꢀ
TheꢀCountyꢀisꢀtheꢀprimeꢀrecipientꢀofꢀtheꢀAIPꢀgrantsꢀandꢀultimatelyꢀresponsibleꢀforꢀtimelyꢀ
andꢀaccurateꢀsubmissionꢀofꢀrequiredꢀreports.ꢀUntimelyꢀorꢀinaccurateꢀreportingꢀcouldꢀ
resultꢀinꢀnoncomplianceꢀwithꢀfederalꢀgrantꢀrequirementsꢀandꢀlimitꢀtheꢀCounty’sꢀfutureꢀ
fundingꢀopportunities.ꢀ
ꢀ
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀeither:ꢀ
 Prepareꢀandꢀsubmitꢀtheꢀrequiredꢀreports,ꢀorꢀ
 Ensureꢀtheꢀaccurateꢀandꢀtimelyꢀsubmissionꢀofꢀtheꢀrequiredꢀreports.ꢀ

 
Findingꢀ13.ꢀElectronicꢀApprovalsꢀinꢀPayrollꢀSystemꢀCannotꢀBeꢀ
Verifiedꢀ

 
TheꢀOracleꢀApexꢀpayrollꢀsystemꢀoverwroteꢀpastꢀapprovalꢀdatesꢀwithꢀtheꢀmostꢀcurrentꢀ
approvalꢀdatesꢀeachꢀtimeꢀanꢀapprovalꢀwasꢀcompleted.ꢀTherefore,ꢀweꢀwereꢀunableꢀtoꢀ
determineꢀtheꢀactualꢀapprovalꢀdatesꢀofꢀpayrollꢀtransactionsꢀwithinꢀtheꢀsystem.ꢀToꢀhelpꢀ
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ensureꢀappropriateꢀrecordꢀkeeping,ꢀfinancialꢀsystemsꢀshouldꢀaccuratelyꢀcaptureꢀandꢀretainꢀ
pertinentꢀinformation,ꢀincludingꢀoriginalꢀapprovalꢀdates.ꢀꢀ
ꢀ
WhenꢀtheꢀCountyꢀswitchedꢀfromꢀOracleꢀFormsꢀtoꢀOracleꢀApexꢀinꢀfiscalꢀyearꢀ2020,ꢀaꢀqueryꢀ
usedꢀduringꢀtheꢀpayrollꢀapprovalꢀprocessꢀwasꢀnotꢀappropriatelyꢀupdatedꢀinꢀtheꢀnewꢀ
system,ꢀcausingꢀtheꢀoverwriting.ꢀInternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀtheꢀsystemꢀdevelopment/changeꢀ
processꢀdidꢀnotꢀdetectꢀtheꢀproblem.ꢀWithoutꢀproperꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀtheꢀsystemꢀ
development/changeꢀprocess,ꢀthereꢀisꢀanꢀincreasedꢀriskꢀthatꢀsystemsꢀwillꢀfailꢀtoꢀfunctionꢀ
asꢀintended.ꢀꢀ
 
Recommendation:ꢀꢀ

WeꢀrecommendꢀtheꢀCountyꢀimplementꢀadequateꢀinternalꢀcontrolsꢀoverꢀtheꢀpayrollꢀ
systemꢀdevelopmentꢀandꢀchangeꢀmanagementꢀprocesses.ꢀ
ꢀ
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County’sꢀResponseꢀ
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Auditor’sꢀConcludingꢀCommentꢀ
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AuditorꢀConcludingꢀCommentꢀ
 
TheꢀUintahꢀCountyꢀleadership’sꢀdisagreementꢀwithꢀtheꢀfindingsꢀnotedꢀaboveꢀhighlightsꢀtheꢀ
lackꢀofꢀunderstandingꢀandꢀ lackꢀofꢀresponsibilityꢀwithꢀwhichꢀtheyꢀapproachꢀexecutionꢀandꢀ
oversightꢀofꢀfinancialꢀreporting,ꢀwhichꢀtheꢀauditorꢀfindsꢀconcerning.ꢀꢀꢀ
ꢀ
ꢀ
ꢀ
ꢀ
OfficeꢀofꢀtheꢀStateꢀAuditorꢀ
Septemberꢀ30,ꢀ2021ꢀ
 


